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Bighligbts of 1989

1989 1988 Change

Earnings per common share- ..
Dividends per common share

$ .78 $ 1.21 (35.5)

$ .60 $ 1.20 (50.0)

Common shares outstanding
(average) ......,...... 136,052,000 131,853,000 3.2

Utilityplant(gross) ........... $ 8,324,112,000 $ 7,967,625,000 4.5

Construction work in progress .. $ 387,520,000 $ 315,644,000 22.8

Gross additions to utility
plant .

Public kilowatt-hour sales

Total kilowatt-hour sales

411,887,000 $ 366,142,000 12.5

34,201,000,000 33,263,000,000 2.8

35,396,000,000 34,995,000,000 1.1

Total operating revenues....... $ 2,906,043,000 S 2,800,453,000 3.8

Income available for common
stockholders ... ~.......,... $ 105,601,000 $ 159,657,000 (33.9)
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Electric customers at
end ofyear 1,5o4,ooo 1,482,000 1.5

Electric peak load (kllotvatts) 6,376,000 6,220,000 2.5

Natural gas sales (dekatherms) 80,677,000

Maximum day gas deliverics
(dekatherms) 802,909

Natural gas transported
(dekatherms) .........,.... 33,769,000

Gas customers at end ofyear.... 466,ooo

81,448,000 (.9)

27,244,000 24.0

458,000 1.7

818,128 (1.9)

Serving our Customers in Upstate NewYork

Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation is an
investor-owned utilityproviding energy to the

'argest customer service area in New York.
Our electric system extends from Lake Erie to

Ncw England's borders, from Canada to Pennsyl-
vania, and meets the needs ofover 1.5 millionresi-
dential, commercial and industrial customers.
Power is supplied by hydroelectric, coal, oil, natu-
ral gas-fired and nuclear generating units as well as

through purchase contracts. Electricity is transmit-
ted through an integrated dperating network that is
linked to other systems in the Northeast for
economic exchange and mutual reliability.

Our natural gas system services approximately
466,000 residential and business customers with

access to our 6,500-mile system in central, eastern
and northern New York. In addition to the pur-
chase, sale and distribution ofgas to retail custom-
ers, a growing part ofour business includes the
transportation ofnatural gas for those customers
who are, large users and have arranged their own
supply.

We also operate subsidiary companies in the
United States and Canada. Opinac Energy Corp.
operates an exploration company and a utilityin
Canada. HYDRA-CO Enterprises Inc. builds and
operates power production facilities. NITECH Inc.
markets advanced instrumentation systems to the
utilityindustry.

This report was designed, written and produced by Niagara Mohawk people, The financial section and cover of this annual report
are printed on recycled paper stock.



To our shareholders:

We base closed ont tcbat tees certainly tbe most di~fcnlt decade of
Niagara Mobawk's history. And ifone year gas representative of
tbe decade as a whole, it was 1989. It seas at once a year ofcbange,

disappointment and progress.

Looking only to financial matters, the past year was certainly disappointing as

we failed to meet many of the expectations we had for company performance.
Earnings for 1989 were $ 105.6 millionor $ .78 per share, compared with $ 159.7

millionor $ 1.21 per share in 1988. A downward trend in earnings and earnings pcr
share has continued since 1987, when we took an after-tax write-offof $ 833 million
in disallowed Nine MileTwo costs.

Two factors were prime contributors during 1989 to the continuing decline in
earnings:
~ Higher-than-expected operating expenses, particularly those associated with the.

Nine Mile One outage;
~ An agreement with the New York State Public Service Commission and other

parties, under which we absorbed nearly $ 41 million in replacement power. costs
from the Nine Mile One outage during the first six months of the year.

Return on common equity declined to 5.6 percent for 1989, compared with 8.7
percent in 1988. There is potential for improvement in 1990 ifwe are successful in
meeting the defined milestones in a self-assessment program we are undertaking,
and ifwe are able to resolve our nuclear problems and restart Nine Mile One in
accordance with our current schedule.

1989 inPerspective
Obviously, we did not accomplish all we sct out to do in 1989. Our inability to

bring Nine Mile One back into service after a two-year outage was the primary
objective not attained during the year.

As a result of the prolonged outage, we were hampered in our efforts to control
operating costs.

(Fuel loading at Nine Mile One was completed inJanuary 1990, but we do not
anticipate being ready to restart the plant before the second quarter of this year.)

Recognizing the difficulties we would face in 1989, we began in February to
establish a dialogue with regulators, lawmakers and opinion leaders about the need
for a better balance of interests between customers and shareholders.

As the primary provider ofenergy to more than 3.5 millionNew Yorkers, our
slide into financial difficultycould not be allowed to continue without a detrimental
effect on our ability to provide service to our customers.

At the same time, itwas unrealistic to assume that our shareholders should
shoulder the entire burden ofour financial difficulties. Uncertainty within the
investment community would serve only to exacerbate our already weakened
financial condition.

Early in the year, we agreed to suspend collection of $225,000 per day in
replacement power costs associated with the Nine Mile One outage to allow us to

"focus all our efforts on the restart of the unit.



We petitioned the Public Service Commission in May to allow us to retain cost
savings realized through a change in the way we fund the portion ofour pension
program associated with those employees already retired. Through the purchase ofa

single premium annuity, we ultimately willrealize savings ofabout $83 million.
In early August, we applied to the PSC for an increase in revenues ofnearly

$ 370 million, the largest request in the company's history. In December, that
request was reduced to $ 344.5 million through the normal updating process. Base

electric rates had not increased since March 1987, while gas rates had not increased
since March 1985.

Under our previous electric and gas rate agreements, new rates could not take
effect before mid-1990. Our filingwas timed so that new rates could take effect with
the expiration of the existing rate agreements.

AnnRegulatory Agreement
Our communications efforts with our regulators culminated in the 1989 Reg-

ulatory Agreement that should afford us the breathing room we had been seeking to
move ahead in areas we had identified for change and improvement. The agreement
was signed late in August and approved by the PSC in October. It contains three
basic elements:
~ Itprovides needed financial reliefby permitting us to collect replacement power

costs associated with the Nine Mile One outage, as well as regulatory cost deferrals
and a recovery mechanism intended to preserve interest coverage ratios at
investment grade levels.

~ It establishes a framework that willallow the company to resolve issues relating to
rate relief, setting the stage for all parties to the agreement to discuss a multi-year
plan that would be intended to ensure reasonable rates and financial strength.

~ Itprovides that we willconduct a self-assessment ofour organizational efficiency
and effectiveness, with the goal ofachieving financial and operating improve-
ments.

In August, the Board ofDirectors voted to omit dividends on shares ofcommon
stock. At the same time, the Board reduced its fees, salaries of the Chairman and
President were reduced, other officer salaries were frozen at current levels and we
placed a cap on all new positions outside the Nuclear Division as further efforts to
reduce costs.

As part of the agreement, we willnot resume payment ofcommon dividends at
least until Nine Mile One returns to fullservice. We are committed to paying
dividends to our shareholders at the earliest possible date, but such action is also
dependent on our level ofretained and future earnings, cash flow, financial require-
ments and other uncertainties.

A Eius on 2990
Three areas willreceive particular attention in 1990: the self-assessment pro-

cess; our ongoing regulatory dialogue; and continued efforts toward improving per-
formance in our nuclear operations.

The self-assessment process willbe a long-term effort, as we examine virtually
every aspect ofour operations. We have retained McKinsey and Company, a highly
respected consulting firm, to assist us with this process. It has the fullsupport ofour
Board ofDirectors and senior management team. As leaders of the company, we
have taken personal and active roles in its implementation.

We are to submit a final report with recommendations to the PSC by November
15, 1990. One ofour self-assessment goals, however, is to acquire and refine the
skills necessary to continually examine and evaluate our organizational and opera-
tional effectiveness so that our efforts to achieve maximum efficiency extend
beyond the formal conclusion ofour assessment.



Self-assessment is just one piece ofour efforts to improve relationships with our
regulators. The agreement provides that all parties willdiscuss the settlement of
issues related to our financial condition and regulatory situation, including the Nine
Mile One prudence investigation.

While we can offer no assurances as to what the final outcome of these dis-
cussions willbe, we are encouraged that negotiations are being carried out in an
atmosphere ofcooperation and constructive dialogue.

Another piece ofour ongoing regulatory dialogue, and part of the agreement, is
our study of the advantages and disadvantages of the separation, reorganization or
other restructuring with respect to our natural gas business. This report is to be
presented to the PSC no later than June 1, 1990.

And finally,we are seeking further improvements in our nuclear operations.
Our goal in this area is not only to meet and exceed regulatory requirements, but to
be recognized as a leader in the nuclear industry. We have made progress, but we
have a long way to go.

Our nuclear facilities represent about 14 percent ofour total generating mix.
Yet so much ofwhat Niagara Mohawk has accomplished has been overshadowed—
financially and politically—by our difficulties in this arena.

At our last annual meeting, we outlined for shareholders a plan to achieve
financial prosperity. We knew at the time that there were no short-term solutions to
our difficulties, and that achievement oflong-term financial strength would require
long-range thinking.

We have made progress. And the challenge continues. On the pages that follow
is a report on that plan and the progress we made in 1989.

c,

John hi. Endrtes
President

1VltllantJ. Donlon
Cbalnnan oftbe Doard and
ChiefExeett tive Offl'eer

February 2I, 1990



inancial strength: In 1989, uje sought a balance of interests

bet>veen shareholders and customers. We attempted toforge a more

effective ~orking relationship ~th our regulators, to achieve a

degree offinancial breathing room for the year, and to gain adequate revenue

flouj thereafter.

e made progress, but
much remains to be

done. The decisions we made
in 1989 mill enable us in 1990
to build a nem framework for
financial strength. A measure
of success, we believe, willbe
our ability to resume payment
ofdividends on common stock
at the earliest prudent date.

The regulatory agreement
we reached in August with the
state's Public Service Commis-
sion, Attorney General, Con-
sumer Protection Board and
Multiple Intervenors repre-
senting our largest industrial
customers established a foun-
dation upon which we feel we
can effectively administer our
ongoing programs for financial
recovery.

These include our Nuclear
Improvement Program, the
Restart Action Plan for Nine
Mile One, a continuing focus
on strengthening customer
service and cost containment
in the areas of operating ex-
penses, construction programs
and power production.

The agreement established a
targeted minimum level of fi-
nancial strength, measured on

the basis of interest coverage
ratios, in our effort to maintain
the investment grade credit
ratings on our bondsso vital to
our financing efforts. It also al-
lowed us to resume fullcollec-
tion of replacement power
costs associated with the Nine
Mile One outage, effective July
1, 1989.

The agreement provides a
framework for regulatory
cooperation in the resolution
of a number of outstanding fi-
nancial matters, including a

multi-year rate plan, the Nine
Mile One outage prudence in-
vestigation and unresolved
Nine Mile Two issues.

The agreement opened the
door for Niagara Mohawk to
initiate —in concert with
regulators —a detailed exami-
nation of our strengths and
weaknesses. We are now con-
ducting an intensive self-
assessment of our operating
and management practices.

We intend to present to the
Commission this November a
detailed report covering our
self-assessment that will in-

'lude recommendations for
enhancing our organizational

and operational capabilities.
Our goal is to strive for
maximum corporate effi-
ciency and effectiveness.

Such an agreement requires
sacrifice; most notably, the
omission of common stock
dividends at least until Nine
Mile One is returned to full
service and the continuation
of the freeze on base electric
and gas rates until January,
1991.

Also, higher-than-antici-
pated operating expenses, in-
cluding those associated with
the Nine Mile One outage, had
a draining effect on earnings
despite higher sales in all ulti-
mate customer categories.

Our financial condition was
such that the decision by the
Board of Directors to omit
common dividends was a
necessary step toward regain-
ing financial strength. The
agreement and its provisions
for addressing unresolved is-
sues will allow us to better
examine our goals, and the
cost of those goals. We intend
to mork earnestly with reg-
ulators to resolve the mul-
titude of open issues, each



having the potential for ad-
verse financial consequences,
and to establish new rates that
offer a reasonable price for
customers and a fair return for
shareholders.

We already are w'orking
with the other parties to our
regulatory agreement to
negotiate a multi-year rate
pact, which will include in-
centive return mechanisms
tied to the recommendations
from self-assessment, with the
aim of improving earnings for
shareholders, securing rate
stability for our customers and
obtaining financial stability for
the company.

These discussions should
reach conclusion very late in

I ~ ~

~ ~
~ ~

1990. If permanent rates are
not established by January 1,

1991, temporary rates will
take effect. Under the agree-
ment, permanent rates must
be established by the Public
Service Commission not later
than March 1, 1991.

At the time we began these
negotiations early in 1989,
we fullyunderstood that com-
plete financial recovery for
Niagara Mohawk could not be
attained in a single year.

The complexity of the 1989
agreement is a reflection of
the many changes in the struc-
ture ofour industry, and in the
way it is regulated and moni-
tored. However, we believe
we have laid a foundation we
can successfully build on in
the 1990s.

ystem reliability is the heart and soul of the utilitybusiness. Eor

Nagara Mohawk, it means having access to adequate sources of
energy supply and an efficient transmission and distribution

net<cork to deliver it.

O ur cQorts over the years
in obtaining, generating

and supplying energy have
provided us with an impres-
sive array of resources to meet
the needs ofour customers. In
1989, we strengthened our
capabilities on several fronts.

We broke new ground last
fall with our invitation to all
iriterested parties to compete
for the supply of 350

megawatts of new electrical
capacity. The request for pro-
posals is the first test of the
company's all-source bidding
program, adopted by the
company and approved by the
Public Service Commission in
1989.

Dozens of developers have
expressed interest in our re-
quest for proposals. All bids,
including our own proposal to

extend the life of two
generators at our Huntley
Steam Station, will be
screened and ranked by an in-
dependent party prior to the
company's final evaluation
process.

Conservation and load-
management programs could
account for as much as 50
megawatts of the needed
capacity. We expect to award



the contracts in August, with
the new capacity expected to
be available by 1994.

Our bidding program is em-
bodied in-the Niagara Mohawk
Integrated Electric Resource
Plan, adopted in 1989. The
plan delineates the process by
which we will identify future
capacity needs and how the
company will acquire those
resources.

Among existing resources,
Niagara Mohawk's fossil fuel
and hydroelectric generating
stations contributed signifi-
cantly to our ability to meet
customer demand in 1989. In
fact, our fossil stations broke
records for electrical produc-
tion set only a year earlier,
generating 17,900 millions of
kilowatt-hours, thus exceed-
ing 1988's output by 9.3 per-
cent.

Hydroelectric production
also was improved as the 74
hydroelectric stations we op-
erate and maintain generated
more than 3,675 millions of
kilowatt-hours, 16 percent
more than 1988.

We intend to continue our
legacy of making efficient and
environmentally-sound use of
waterways in our service terri-
tory. To that cnd, we intend to
seek new licenses at our 30
hydro stations where existing
licenses expire in 1993, and
anticipate hydro construction
and rehabilitation expendi-
tures of some $ 30 million in
1990 alone.

Competition for these
licenses is expected to be stiff
at several sites, but we are
confident that our record of
low-cost generation and en-
vironmental sensitivity should
prevail. Our support of the
burgeoning fisheries and rec-
reation industry along these
watcrways has grown dramat-
ically in recent years, illustrat-

ing our stewardship of this ir-
replaceable natural resource.

Niagara Mohawk also has
made significant strides in
securing adequate and cost-
effective supplies of natural
gas. The New York State
Energy Master Plan was un-
veiled in Albany in 1989. The
plan strongly recommends the
continued and expanded use
ofnatural gas as an economical
and environmentally-sound
energy source.
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We are moving to support
this effort through increased
purchases of natural gas on the
spot market, securing ade-
quate supplies while lowering
costs for our customers. Since
we initiated spot-market pur-
chasing in 1984, we gradually
have increased the volume of
gas bought to about 35-per-
cent of our total annual pur-
chases, saving our customers
more than $ 26 million in
1989.

Late in 1989, the Canadian
National Energy Board re-
jected several natural gas ex-
port applications, including
one that would have allowed
Niagara Mohawk for the first
time to tap into the vast re-
serves in western Canada. We
are appealing that decision
and, ifsuccessful, will resume
our plans to construct the
Trans York Pipeline. The proj-
ect would cross the St. Law-
rence River, delivering an ad-
ditional 50,000 dekatherms a
day to our system in the
Watertown area.

Niagara Mohawk's electrical
transmission and distribution
system is at once a source of
pride and concern. We have
the capability to supply energy
to 3.5 million New Yorkers.

Requests for new service
throughout our eight operat-
ing regions continue to in-
crease, a sign of economic
strength in our service terri-
tory. However, we must re-
main diligent in our efforts to
maintain and upgrade our
existing systems.

In 1990 we are proposing
to fund a dedicated transmis-
sion and distribution mainte-
nance program, applying the
resources necessary to ensure
our network remains reliable.
We will target those areas of
our infrastructure that have
been particularly troublesome
for immediate attention, and
willestablish a comprehensive
schedule of regular mainte-
nance for the entire system.

This will help us achieve
our corporate goal of reducing
the duration of customer in-
terruptions, while increasing
our service availability index,
already at 99.98 percent for
the past ten years. This repre-
sents the percentage of time
service is delivered to all cus-
tomers without interruption.



uclear productivity remains a critical priority for Magara

Mohaujk Our primary ejiort is to ensure museum productivity

from our theo nuclear stations, providing lose-cost energy to our
system foryears to come.

i989 proved to be a dif-
ficult and challenging

year in meeting our primary
short-term goal: the return to
service of Nine Mile One.

Significant work has been
completed during this ex-
tended outage to attempt to
assure that with the plant's re-
turn to service it willbe capa-
ble of providing many morc
years of safe operation.

In rcsponsc to a Nuclear
Regulatory Commission re-
quirement, we developed a
detailed Restart Action Plan
that idcntificd and analyzed
the root causes of our diQicul-
ties at Nine Mile One and out-
lined the necessary corrective
actions. After working closely
with regulatory staff to refine
the plan, it was approved by
NRC officials on September
29, 1989.

A Readiness for Restart Rc-
port was submitted to the
NRC in early September, rep-
resenting a comprehensive
evaluation of the effectiveness
of the corrective actions con-
tained in the Restart Action
Plan. With this report, we now
have satisfied the three re-
quirements established by the
NRC as part of its intense
oversight of the Nine Mile One
plant.

In January, Nine Mile Onc
reached a significant mile-
s>one in the restart process, as
plant operators completed the

~ . ~ ~
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reloading of fuel in the reactor
core in anticipation of NRC
approval for resumed opera-
tions in the second quarter
of 1990.

As we developed the Nine
Mile One Restart Action Plan,
we realized the need for im-
provement throughout our
nuclear operations. That mas
the genesis of our Nuclear Im-
provement Program. Where
the Restart Action Plan ad-
dresses the specific require-
ments for returning Nine Mile
One to service, the Nuclear
Improvement Program fo-
cuses on long-term improve-
ments in achieving excellence

throughout the Nuclear Di-
vision.

Results for 1989 from Nine
Mile Two also were mixed.
Nagging operational and
mechanical difficulties re-
duced the plant's overall
availability and unfortunately
drew attention away from the
fact that, during the year, Nine
MileTwo completed an opera-
tional run of 134 consecutive
days in October, during which
it achieved a capacity factor
above 90 percent.

In July, we announced a
new interim operating agree-
ment for Nine Mile Two
further defining the roles of
the plant's owners and con-
tinuing our role as operator.
Over the 18-month life of the
agreement, the owners mill
explore alternative operating
methods, including the forma-
tion of an operating company.
The new agreement is signifi-
cant in that it unifies and
strengthens our co-owner
relationship during this time
of increased regulatory scru-
tiny of plant operations.

In 1990, we have scheduled
a refueling for Nine Mile Two,
and sct a goal to operate the
unit at a much-improved
availability factor.

We faced other difBculties
mith respect to our nuclear
operations during 1989 that
cast additional shadows over
our improvement efforts. In



July, 14 of 48 Nine Mile Two
operators failed license requal-
ification testing.

While we had a sufficient
number of qualified operators
to continue operation and all
but one of the 14 were suc-
cessfully retested, it pointed
out a need to strengthen our
training efforts, and we have
initiated an action plan to
correct such deficiencies. We
are continuing an aggressive
program to recruit highly
qualified professionals to
strengthen our management
team in all areas of nuclear op-
erations and engineering.

In August, an NRC inspec-
tion team conducted an inves-

, tigation of the circumstances
surrounding a 1981 spill of
radioactive waste containers

in a waste storage facility at
Nine Mile One. The NRC con-
curred with our contention
that at no time was the health
and safety of the public or our
employees endangered by the
situation, but found that we
may have committed two
technical violations of regula-
tions.

No determination has been
made by regulators about
what sanctions, ifany, may be
imposed against the company.
Clean-up of the spill has
started, and we willabsorb any
costs above amounts previ-
ously provided in rates.

Both nuclear units remain
on the NRC's list of facilities
requiring close regulatory
monitoring. The intense level
of scrutiny our nuclear opera-

tions have come under from
our regulators is surpassed
only by our own efforts at
examination, analysis and im-
provement.

We embarked on the path of
nuclear power production
some 30 years ago as a buffer
against sustained dependence
on any single fuel source. Our
recent difficulties in nuclear
plant operations have over-
shadowed our success in
achieving a diverse fuel mix.

Our goal for nuclear opera-
tions is to manage our plants
to obtain the most value for
customers and shareholders.
To do this, we must maximize
productivity and provide
leadership that encourages
our people to meet the highest
standards.

conomlc development isfundamental to the prosperity ofNagara
Mohaujk and the communities it serves. What better ujay, then, to

stimulate economic groujth than through a poujerful coalition of
private and public interests.

T he Niagara Mohawk
Power Corp. /New York

State Partnership established a
framework in 1989 to enhance
the business-attraction efforts
of local, regional and state
economic development en-
tities. We have dedicated $ 4
million to the program, allow-
ing the Partnership to concen-
trate on luring new businesses
to upstate New York and to re-
taining jobs and expanding

businesses in our service terri-
tory.

This initiative will improve,
coordination among econom-
ic development agencies and
officials at all levels, while
providing them with an effec-
tive new array of tools.

The models, methods, tech-
niques and programs de-
veloped by the Partnership
will be used to stimulate
economic development

throughout New York. The
Partnership will concentrate
on four key activities: an
analysis of business oppor-
tunities, the identification of
growth priorities, a follow-
through on business develop-
ment, and the delivery of
targeted communications.

We believe there willbe an
increasing number of export
opportunities and Canadian
business expansion in New



York as a result of the ratifica-
tion of the Free Trade Agree-
ment between the United
States and Canada. The
Partnership also will install a
statewide computer network
to track economic develop-
ment prospects and to manage
other data vital to business
growth.

While the Partnership offers
exciting opportunities as it
develops, we continue to have
success in our economic de-
velopment endeavors through
the application of our three
incentive programs.

First is the Economic De-
velopment Rider, offering
businesses discounted rates
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for new or added electrical or
gas load. Another is the
Economic Development Zone
Rider, with special rates for
new or added load for
businesses that relocate or ex-
pand in economically dis-
tressed localities throughout
our service territory.

And finally, we offer the
Economic Revitalization In-
centive Rider to support fi-
nancially distressed industries
already located in our service
territory. Thus far, the three
programs have been used by
some 172 businesses, con-
tributing to the creation or re-
tention of approximately
11,300 jobs.

emand-side management: Late in 19S9, Niagara Mohawk

lannched a major new incentAre to promote energy e~iency
among the more than 3.5 millionpeople in its semRe territory.

E xtensive research and
development in the area

of conservation and load man-
agement have yielded a menu
of significant new programs
that willhelp curb

customers'rowing

appetite for electric-
ity and could delay the need to
construct large new generat-
ing stations in the future.

By intervening in the mar-
ketplace to influence the
energy decisions its customers
make, Niagara Mohawk is
practicing what is known in
the industry as "demand-side
management." In other words,
rather than simply supplying

electricity to customers, DSM
programs attempt to alter cus-
tomers'emand for electric-
ity.

And significantly, we joined
with the Public Service Com-
mission and other utilities in
the state to devise and imple-
ment methods for recovering
all demand-side management
costs and fairly rewarding the
companies'hareholders for
their investment in conserva-
tion and load-management
programs. The result: econom-
ic incentives that serve the
best interests of shareholders
and customers.

Demand-side management
eQorts now underway include
the Residential Time-of-Use
program, the Low-Cost Mea-
sures program and the Com-
mercial and Industrial Lighting
program. Additional programs
will be brought to the public
in 1990.

Each program is unique,
targeted to specific popula-
tions and customer groups.
The goal, however, is the
same: to help our customers
efficiently manage their use
—and their cost —of energy.

In the Low-Cost Measures
program, our residential cus-
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tomers are being offered—
free of charge —four impor-
tant energy-saving devices: a
low-flow shower head, water
heater insulation, pipe wrap
and an eIIicient light bulb.

Cash incentives are being
offered to Commercial and In-
dustrial Lighting program par-
ticipants, who also benefit by
significantly reducing their
energy bills when they pur-
chase high-efficiency fluores-
cent lamps and ballasts.

In December, we began re-
quiring the 16,000 largest res-
idential users of electricity to
subscribe to special time-of-

~ ~

use rates, a key corporate goal.
Under time-of-use rates, the
price customers pay for elec-
tricity changes daily and sea-
sonally, corresponding with
the actual cost of electricity
production.

Ifthere was any question as
to the need for such an effort,
we need only remember this
figure: 6,376. That is the
number of megawatts de-
manded from our customers
on December 21, 1989, an
all-time company record
achieved at least two years
earlier than anyone had pre-
dicted.

ervice excellence programs ujere developed and strengthened

throughout 1989. But meeting the needs ofour diverse customer

base requires more than programs. People-Niagara Mohawk

people —are at the heart ofour commitment to providing excellent service.

e intensified our train-
ing associated with-

the "Think Like a Customer"
program, now having reached
more than 6,000 employees
since its inception in 1987.
Complaints to the Public Serv-
ice Commission have dropped
by about 16 percent since that
year.

Regional "Managing the
Customer Experience" teams
were instrumental in examin-
ing and resolving customer
service problems, with 23
separate recommendations al-
ready implemented. And in
January, 1990, training began

for an additional 4,000 mem-
bers of our work force.

Niagara Mohawk has been a
pacesetter in the implementa-
tion of company-initiated, as
well as mandated, consumer
service programs for many
years. A wide range of indi-
vidualized services are avail-
able for all classes of customer
accounts.

To strengthen our capa-
bilities, we created 55 new
positions in critical customer-
related functions. And since
severe weather conditions or
equipment problems often
test a utility's ability to pro-

vide service, we increased our
training of personnel and test-
ing of emergency response
procedures.

Service excellence requires
that we reach out to custom-
ers, particularly those in need
of special assistance. Our pro-
grams include special services
for the elderly and the handi-
capped, and for those who
have difficulty affording elec-
tric and gas service so vital to
everyday living.

We note with pride that two
of our programs were ac-
corded national recognitioq in
1989. Our Gatekeeper pro-



gram trains customer-contact
employees to be aware of
conditions that could indicate
an elderly person is in need of
medical or'ocial-service assis-
tance. The Academic Enrich-
ment program is part of the
company's efforts to take an
active role in supporting edu-
cation in our service territory.

These programs were
awarded Presidential Citations
as part of the President's Cita-
tion Program for Private Sec-
tor Initiatives in a White
House ceremony. Niagara
Mohawk was one of very few
companies in the nation to re-
ceive more than one award.

In 1990, Niagara Mohawk
again will reach out with a

new, comprehensive program
designed to help low-income
households better manage
their energy usage and con-
sequent costs. Known as
"Power Partnerships," this
program will include cus-
tomer identification, house-
hold weatherization and
energy education efforts for

I I ~ I

~ ~ ~

1555 8.5

~ ~ ~
~ ~

1750 9 8

~ ~
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1731 10.1

~ ~

2099 12.4

those who have the most diffi-
culty in affording the most
basic energy services.

Consumer programs can be
successful only if the people

conducting them care about
their customers. Niagara
Mohawk employees care not
only about their customers,
but about their communities
as well.

A group of employees in
Glens Falls donated the cash
from an exceptional service
award they had earned to vic-
tims of the devastating earth-
quake that rocked the San
Francisco Bay area in the fall of
1989. The Nuclear Security
department received an ex-
ceptional service award for its
outstanding ratings during
federal regulatory inspections.
That award was donated to
three area charities. And two
Bu6'alo area service employees
risked their lives to save sev-
eral children from a burning
house.

These are just three recent
examples of Niagara Mohawk
people helping others and the
communities they serve.
These accounts are indicative
of the qualities inherent in our
people.

iversification: While tee regain financial strength and stability
in our regulated core business, see ulll be assisted by the grosu-

ing financial contributions from diversification efforts at our

theo maj or subsidiaries, Opinac Energy and HFDF-CO. Both have

proven to be sound investments for Niagara Mohair@.

O pinac, our Canadian
subsidiary, is in the

midst of expansion, showing
steadyi increases in earnings,

cash flow and oil and natural
gas production.

It operates two distinct di-
visions. Opinac Exploration

Limited is the oil and gas ex-
ploration and production di-
vision in Calgary, while Cana-
dian Niagara Power generates



electricity at its Niagara Falls,
Ontario hydro plant for the
wholesale market and for its
distribution system in Fort
Erie, Ontario.

A steady flow of earnings
from the utility division has
enabled Opinac to build a

strong portfolio of energy-
related investments, while
steadily increasing its own
drilling and production ac-
tivities.

In 1990, Opinac's average
daily production is expected
to reach 2,200 barrels of oil
and 78 million cubic feet of
gas, a nearly ten-fold increase
in just three years.

In November, Canadian
Niagara Power began supply-
ing electricity under contract
to the City of Cornwall,
Ontario, and expects in-
creased demand in the Fort
Erie market as a result of the
Free Trade Agreement be-
tween the U.S. and Canada.

HYDRA-CO, too, has been a
valuable asset. Formed in
1981, its primary objective is
to develop and own principal

HYDRACO

stakes in a diversified portfolio
of. independent power proj-
ects with strong growth and
earnings potential. Its track
record is excellent.

With a geographic portfolio
of projects from Maine to
California, HYDRA-CO is in-
volved in the broad spectrum

Pl BC
ENERGY

of co-generation and indepen-
dent production activities;

from agricultural biomass and
wood waste to coal and natu-
ral gas-fired, from hydroelec-
tric to wind power.

In 1989, the power produc-
tion company brought on line
some 149 megawatts of
power, bringing its total proj-
ect capability to 322 mega-
watts.

Under construction and
scheduled for operation in
1990 and 1991 are six more
facilities with a combined
capacity of nearly 262
megawatts. In all, HYDRA-CO
is involved in projects with
total assets of more than $730
million.

We expect that Opinac and
HYDRA-CO will continue to
flourish in the new decade. As
we achieve greater financial
strength, we will examine
other legitimate opportunities
for additional diversification in
areas related to our core
business.

gELECTRIC
SERVICE
AREA

mGAS
I-ISERVICE

AREA

,Odonebve
@Node
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NIAGARA,MOHAWK POWER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Selected Financial Data

1986 19851988 1987

As discussed in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements, certain of the following selected financial data may not be indicative of the Company's
future financial condition or results of operations, Certain of 1987 data is not presented since it is either not meaningful or
not applicablo in light of the adoption of SFAS No. 90 which required tho write-offof disallowed Unit 2 costs and resulted in

a not loss for the year.
1999

Operations:(000's)
Operating revenues.
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change
Cumulative effect on prior years of adoption of

SFASNo.90 .
Net income (loss) .

Proforma balance available for common stock
-giving effect to the retroactive application of
SFAS No. 90 ~ ~ ~, ~ ~ . ~ ~ ~ ~ . ~ ~ ~ ~ . ~ .. ~ r . ~ ~ ~... ~ . ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~

(615,000)
150,783 208,814 (557,214), 3971865 411,430

5,769 16,048 64,871

$2,906,043 $2,800,453 $2,623,430 $2,660,319 $ 2,694,940
150,783 208,814 57,786 397,865 411,430

Common stock data:
Book value per share at year end,............,.......
Market price at year end...
Ratio of market price to book value at year end........
Dividend yield at year end,...
Earnings per average common share before

cumulative effect of accounting change............
Cumulative effect on prior years of adoption of

SFAS No. 90 per average common'share.......,....
Earnings per average common share...,.....,.......
Proforma earnings per average common share

-giving effect to the. retroactive
application of SFAS No. 90

Rate of return on common equity ....,....,..........
Dividends paid per common share ........,.... „...,
Dividend payout ratio .

$14.07
14%

102.2/o
0.0'/o

$ .78

.78

5.6/o
$ .60

76.9/o

$ 13.87
13
93.7/o

9.2/o

$ 1.21

1.21

8.7/o
S 1.20

99.2/o

$ 13.82
12
86.6o/o

10 fy/o

$ 20.23
1P/4
82.8'/o

2 4o/o

$ 19.61
20yz

104 5%
10 1o/o

(4.83)
(4.78) 2.71 2,88

.05
12.7Yo

S 1.64

.13
13.6o/o

$ 2.08
76.8%

.53
15.(P/o

S 2.06
71 5%

$ 05 S 271 $ 288

Capitalization: (000's)
Common equity . „. ~ ~ I ~ I
Non.redeemable preferred stock.:...................
Redeemable preferred stock „.....,...,...,.......,
Long.term debt...

$119141531 $ 1,881,394 $ 1,781,518
290I000 2901000 290 000
2671530 295,510 355,490

3,249,328 2,995,748 2,903,921

$2,571,491 $2,488,620
290,000 290,000
347,470 '791850

2.799,605 2,643.094

Total, 5,721,389 5,462,652 5,330,929
First mortgage bonds mafuring within one year ......, 50,000 33,000 50,000Total...,, ...,... SS,771,389 $ 5,495,652 $ 5,380,929

6,008,566 5,801>564
50,000 30,000

$6,058,566 $ 5,831,564

Capitalization ratios: (inciuding first mortgage
bonds maturing within one year):

Common stock equity........."..... -,... ~ ",."'.
Preferred stock.
Long-term debt ..
Financial ratios:
Ratio of earnfngs to fixed charges........,...........
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges without AFC........
Ratio of AFC to balance available forcommon stock...
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preferred

stock dividends, .

Proforma Ratios-giving effect to tho
retroactive application of SFAS No. 90:

Earnings to fixed charges ....., ........,....,.'..
Earnings to fixed charges and preferred
stock dividends .

Other ratios-% of operating revenues:
Fuel, purchased power and purchased gas .........
Maintenance, depreciation and amortization,.......
Total faxes . I ~ I

Operating income . „

Balance available for common stock .. „.......,...

1.71 2.10, 1.65"
1.66 2.06 1,54"
18.3/o 6.9o/o

1.41 1.67 1.04"

1.65

1.04

36.5%
14.4
15.3
14.2

3.6

34,6o/o

1S.1
16.1
17.0

5,7

35.6o/o

12,1
16.7
18.5

33.2/o 34.2/o 33.1%
9.6

"
10.7 12.0

57.2 55.1 54.9

42.5o/o 42.7/o
10.5 11.5
47.0 45.8

1.28

1.05

1.40

1.17

38AP/o
11.4
18,1
16.6
12.9

43.4%
10.9
15,7
15.3
13.1

2.98 3.07
2.42 2.37
48.2o/o 53.2/o

2.35 2.36

Miscellaneous: (000's)
Gross additions to utilityplant...., ... $ 411,887 S 366,142
Total utilityplant . 8,324,112 7,967,625
Accumulated depreciation and amortization ....,...., 2,283,307 2,090,170
Total assets . 7,575,093 7,076,041

$ 457,109
7.691,069
1,913,687
6,794,098

$ 784,137 S 781,064
8,445,993 7,640,905
1,763,443 1,629,437
7,611,203 7,013,837

'Excludes the el fee't of the ado ption of SFAS No. 90 amounting to $833 million.
-Excludes the cumulative effect of the adoption of SFAS No. 90 amounting to $615 million.
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MaInagement's Discussion and Analysis ofFinancial
Condition and Results ofOperations
The Company has faced, and continues
to face, a number of significant chal-
lenges in its attempt to strengthen its
financial integrity which was severely
eroded by the 1987 write-off of disal-
lowed Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station
Unit No. 2 (Unit 2) costs. The more sig-
nificant challenges stem from problems
associated with nuclear operations,
specifically the continuing outage at
Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station Unit No..
1 (Unit 1) and the performance of Unit 2
since it commenced commercial opera-
tion in April 1988.

While these problems have had a det-
rimental impact on the Company's re-
cent historical earnings and its ability to
declare common stock dividends, there
are a number of emerging state regula-
tory developments and possible struc-
tural changes in the electric and gas in-
dustries which may have a much
broader and longer-lasting effect on the

Company's operations and the envi-
ronment in which it conducts business.
A number of these issues are discussed
at greater length below as they relate to
the Company's agreement dated August
31, 1989 (the 1989 Agreement) with the
Staft of the Public Service Commission
(PSC Staff), the New York Consumer
Protection Board, the New York Attor-
ney General and Multiple Intervenors.
The Company believes this agreement
marks the beginning of an improved
relationship with its regulators.

Other important emerging issues in-
clude questions of open access to the
Company's transmission facilities by .
other parties, and vice versa, initiatives,
relating to "incentive regulation" which
may ultimately affect how the conse-''
quences of regulation are reflected in
the Company's financial statements and
a combination of demand side man-
agement (conservation) and bidding

programs that will possibly eliminate
the Company's need to construct base
load generating facilities into the next
century, while still permitting it to meet
increasing demand in its service terri-
tory.

The Company's ability to return to fi-
nancial strength is dependent upon its
ability to appropriately respond to these
challenges and to anticipate other
emerging issues. A key element of the
1989 Agreement is the conduct by the
Company. with participation by the New
York Public Service Commission (PSC),
of a self-assessment process with the
overall objective of placing the Com-
pany in a position to manage itself more
effectively and efficiently. As discussed
below, the Company's near-term finan-
cial stability, as well as its success in the
future, will be driven by the self-
assessment process,

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Earnings for 1989 of $ .78 per share
(representing a decrease of 36% from
1988 earnings of $1.21 per share) reflect
a number of regulatory agreements en-
tered into by the Company during 1988
and 1989, the costs associated with the
continuing Unit 1 outage and the costs
of new programs that had not, because
of changing conditions,-been antici-
pated within the regulatory agreements.
„, In May 1988, the Company, PSC Staff
and several Intervening parties (includ-
ing the New York State Consumer Pro-
tection Board, the New York Depart-
ment of Law, the New York Department
of Economic Development and others)
entered into a comprehensive Joint
Stipulation and Agreement (the Stipula-
tion Agreement) concerning the Com-
pany's then pending electric rate filing
and several other pending matters. The
Stipulation Agreement was approved by
the PSC in an order issued August 30,
1988.

Under the Stipuiation Agreement„ the
Company agreed to, among other
things, no increase in base rates for
electric service through June 30, 1990,
while at the same time refunding $ 14
million to ratepayers over the twelve-
month period ended June 30, 1989. The
Company has and will be allowed to re.
fleet in electric operating revenue a
total of approximately $102 million in
unbilled electric revenues, representing
non-cash earnings, to oftset otherwise

required increases in specified costs.
over the two-year period covered by the
Stipulation Agreement and to provide
substantial recovery of the Company's
investment in the Lake Erie Generating
Station Project. Other substantive pro-
visions included establishment, for the
Company's ratemaking purposes, of
April 5, 1988 as the commercial opera-
tion date for Unit 2. The Company was
permitted to defer all costs of operating
Unit 2 from April 5, 1988 to June 30,
1988, and to amortize and recover such
costs over the life of Unit 2. The Com-
pany recorded the effects of the refund,
the write-off of the unrecovered portion
of the Lake Erie Generating Station
Project costs, the accrual of unbilled
revenues and other provisions of the
Stipulation Agreement in 1988, result-
ing in a net reduction in earnings per
share of $ .15.

As discussed further in Note 10 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial State-
ments, Unit 1 was taken out of service in
December 1987, and currently remains
out of service. On September 8, 1988,
the PSC instituted a proceeding to in-
vestigate the prudence of the Unit 1

outage.
The Company entered into an interim

relief agreement (the "Interim Relief
Agreement" ) with the PSC Staff and
other intervenors, which was approved
by the PSC in January 1989, to suspend
collection from ratepayers of $225,000

per'ay in replacement power costs
through the fuel adjustment clause
mechanism, commencing with the fuel
cost month of January 1989, until the
earlier of the restart of Unit 1 or June 30,
1989. This reduced the Company's cash
flow through the agreement period by
approximately $40.7 million.

The Company deterred, for regulatory
purposes only, replacement power cost
revenues associated with the Interim
Relief Agreement for future recovery
pending the results of the PSC's pru-
dence investigation. However, the de-
gree of uncertainty associated with the
ultimate outcome ot the PSC's pru-
dence investigation precluded the re-
cording ot these revenues for financial
reporting purposes, which reduced
earnings per share during 1989 by ap-
proximately $ .20.

Unit 1 did not return to service by
June 30, 1989 and the Interim Relief
Agreement expired by its terms. The
parties to the Interim Relief Agreement,
however, were free to seek an extension
of interim relief. Pursuant to the 1989
Agreement, (See Note 11 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for
further discussion) the parties thereto,
including the PSC, agreed to refrain
from filing any request for cessation of
the flow-through to customers of Unit 1

replacement power costs so long as tPe
1989 Agreement is in effect; however,
such costs collected remain subject to
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the Unit 1 outage prudence investiga-
tion.

Based upon management's current
'ssessment of the facts and cir-
cumstances surrounding the Unit 1 out-
age, the Company has deferred and re-
covered through the fuel adjustment
clause mechanism, the replacement
power costs associated with the fuel
cost months of July through December
1989, and anticipates that it willbe able
to continue to do so through the restart
of Unit 1. However, the Company's abil-
ity to record future replacement power
costs recovered through the fuel ad-
justment clause mechanism as reve-
nues for financial reporting purposes is
subject to change as facts and cir-
cumstances surrounding the investiga-
tion of the Unit 1 outage change. Inabil-
ity to record these revenues could im-
pact the Company's attainment of the
1.60 times interest coverage provided
for in the 1989 Agreement (See Note 11

of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements).

In addition to the negative earnings
Impact associated with the Interim Re-
lief Agreement, the Company estimates
that it has also absorbed approximately
$17 million of Unit 1 replacement power
costs during the course of the outage
thr'ough the sharing provisions of the
fuel adjustment clause mechanism, for
a total amount absorbed of approxi-
mately $58 million. Based upon as-
sumptions utilized in determining the
amount of replacement power costs oc-
casioned by the Unit 1 outage, the
Company estimates that it has collected
up to $1 54 millionof replacement power
costs from ratepayers. The Company
also estimates that it has absorbed ap-
proximately $97 million ($69 million in
1989) of Incremental Unit 1 operating
and maintenance costs, occasioned by
the outage, in excess of amounts pro-
vided for in the ratesetting process.

Replacement power costs associated
with the Unit 1 outage averaged approx-
irnatefy $332 thousand per day through
December 31, 1989, as determined
using a New York Power Pool/Canadian
supplier average cost per kilowatt-hour.
The precise amount of daily replace-
ment power costs incurred and to be in-
curred is dependent upon seasonal fac-
tors, relative demand and availability of
capacity, as well as, assumptions
utilized In estimating replacement
power costs incurred as occasioned by
the outage.

As a result of its deteriorating finan-
cial condition occasioned by the effects
of the agreements discussed above and
increasing expenses relating to the Unit
1 outage and new programs (the costs of
which were not anticipated in the Stipu-

lation Agreement), the Company inves-
tigated a number of options to improve
its financial condition.

On August 31, 1989, the Company, the
PSC Staff, the New York Consumer Pro-
tection Board, the New York Attorney
General 'and Multiple Intervenors en-
tered into the 1989 Agreement which es-
tablishes a framework within which the
Company's current and future financial
condition can be addressed while also
providing a process for the ultimate
resolution of numerous regulatory is-
sues currently faced by the Company. In
an order issued on October 20, 1989,
the PSC approved the 1989 Agreement.

The 1989 Agreement addresses the
Company's current financial condition
by permitting the Company to attain a
minimum monthly interest coverage
level, without Allowance for Funds Used
During Construction (AFC), of 1.60
times through the end of 1990. This
minimum coverage level will be main-
tained by the deferral of expenses sub-
ject to the exclusion of extraordinary
losses, ifany, that may occur during the
period. Through December 31, 1989, the
Company, in order to maintain the
minimum coverage of 1.60 times, has
deferred approximately $13.8 million of
operating expenses for future recovery.
In addition, during the last six months of
1990, minimum cash coverage of 1.60
times (without AFC and non-cash items)
is intended to be maintained, if neces-
sary, through a surcharge to customers
equivalent to available gross margin
from transmission and resale revenues.
The ability of the Company to achieve
the cash coverage target may be limited
by the availability of such transmission
and resale gross margin during the last
six months of 1990 and the Company's
ability to achieve forecasted sales and
expense levels utilized in the 1989
Agreement. The cash surcharge under
this provision of the 1989 Agreement
will serve to reduce expense deferrals
which would otherwise be permitted to
achieve minimum coverage or target
coverage (as described below) under
the 1989 Agreement. The Company be-
lieves that the provisions of the 1989
Agreement, Including the targeted
minimum cash coverage established for
the last six months of 1990, may enable
lt to maintain the investment grade
status of its senior securities; however,
no such assurance can be provided.
(See "Liquidityand Capital Resources"
below for a discussion of the Com-
pany's securities ratings at December
31, 1989.)

In accordance with the 1989 Agree-
ment, the Company is undertaking a
comprehensive self-assessment of the
efficiency and effectiveness of its or-

ganization and management. On De-
cember 15, 1989, the Company submit-
ted to the PSC a work plan describing
the self-assessment approach, includ-
ing a schedule for its completion. The
worK plan includes a mid-course mile-
stone in the form of a report on the
progress and status of the self-
assessment effort. such report is to be
completed on or before May 1, 1990.
The Company is required to submit, no
later than November 15, 1990, a report
summarizing the results of the self-
assessment and provide implementa-
tion plans addressing the issues iden-
tified. The development of the work plan
and the self-assessment process will
serve as a benchmark based on which
the Company will be permitted the op-
portunity to achieve targeted interest
coverage levels higher than 1.60 times
interest charges (without AFC) during
1990. With the acceptance of the work
plan by the PSC on December 29, 1989,
the Company is now permitted to defer
up to $23 million of expenses for future
recovery in an effort to achieve an inter-
est coverage level (without AFC) of 1.75
times for the first six months of 1990. If
the Company successfully completes
the mid-course milestone included in
the work plan by May 1,1990, the Com-
pany will be permitted to defer addi-
tional expenses for future recovery to
provide an interest coverage level of
1.85 times, also without AFC, for the last
six months of 1990. However, there is no
assurance, even if the Company suc-
cessfully completes the mid-course
milestone, that it will achieve the in-
dicated targeted coverage levels since
such levels are dependent on actual re-
sults of operations and exclude ex-
traordinary items. Moreover, the other
parties to the 1989 Agreement have the
-right to contest before the PSC whether
the Company is reasonably carrying out
the self-assessment process, and thus
whether the Company has successfully
achieved the mid-course milestone.

Based upon current estimates of
earnings for 1990, the Company does
not believe that it willattain the interest
coverage level (without AFC) of 1.75
times during the first six months of
1990. The shortfall is primarily related to
forecasted operating expenses in ex-
cess of amounts utilized in the 1989
Agreement. The Company presently an-
ticipates that it will achieve the 1.85
times interest coverage level (without
AFC) during the last six months of 1990,

As a result of a number of factors, in-
cluding uncertainties as to future rate
relief, the restart of Unit 1 and the status
of several outstanding regulatory pro-
ceedings, the Board of Directors, on
August 31, 1989, determined to omit the
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third quarter common stock dividend.
Pursuant to the 1989 Agreement, if the
Company resumes payment of common
stock dividends prior to Unit 1 being
fully returned to service (and achieving
an average 75% capacity factor for a
period of thirty consecutive days) any
other party to the 1989 Agreement may
withdraw therefrom and recommence
litigation of the rate case discussed
below and other regulatory proceedings
covered by the 1989 Agreement. The
Company can provide no assurance
that when Unit 1 has returned to service
its Board of Directors willthereupon de-
termine to resume dividend payments
or as to the level at which they might be
resumed. Other factors to be consid-
ered may include the status of future
rate relief and the resolution of out-
standing regulatory proceedings as dis-
closed in the 1989 Agreement.

In August 1989, the Company filed an
application with the PSC requesting an
increase in electric and gas rates which
would, if granted, produce additional
revenues of $369.6 million for the year
ending June 30, 1991. In December
1989, the application was updated and
revised to $ 344.5 million. The PSC
would have been required to decide the
case by July 4, 1990; however, pursuant
to the 1989 Agreement, the Company
extended the period within which a de-
cision is required for this rate request to
no later than March 1, 1991. In the event
the PSC does not establish permanent
rates by January 1, 1991, temporary
rates will be put in effect as of that date,
with permanent rates to become effec-
tive no later than March 1, 1991. The ef-
fect of this extension is to continue
through December 31, 1990 the base
rates established in the 1988 Stipulation
Agreement. The parties to the 1989
Agreement have agreed to negotiate a
multi-year rate plan, including incentive
return mechanisms, with the objective
of improving the Company's financial
condition and the predictability of fu-
ture rates. Irrespective of these negotia-
tions, the parties have agreed that any
costs deferred pursuant to the mainte-
nance of the specified interest coverage
targets discussed above or other costs
deferred pursuant to the 1989 Agree-
ment, will be recovered in rates, in each
case plus carrying charges, over a
period no longer than three years begin-
ning January 1, 1991. Recovery of the
expensfI deferrals is subject to an an-
nual cap equivalent to two percent of
operating revenues (approximately $50
million per year). The total amount of
deferred costs to be recovered is not
limited. The Company anticipates that,
based on current forecasts, tofal costs
deferred in order to maintain specified

interest coverage targets discussed
above, net of available cash surcharges
equivalent to gross margin from trans-
mission and resale revenues, will not
exceed $100 million including carrying
charges, with the preponderance. of
such deferrals expe'cted to occur in the
last half of 1990. The Company can pro-
vide no assurance as to the outcome of
the rate plan negotiations, the level and
quality of earnings that may ultimately
be authorized or the Company's ability
to earn the authorized equity return es-
tablished.

There are a number of outstanding
regulatory issues affecting the Com-
pany, including the Unit 1 prudence in-
vestigation, Unit 2 Settlement cap is-
sues, Unit 2 contractor litigation issues-
and Unit 2 operating prudence issues. A
goal of the 1989 Agreement is the ulti-,
mate resolution of these issues, either

,by negotiation or by the PSC ifnegotia-
tions are not conclusive. The PSC must
render a final decision on the Com-
pany's rate request no later than March
1, 1991. The Company can provide no
assurance as to the outcome of the
negotiations or the PSC's approval
thereof, or the Impact that fhe resolu-
tion 'of these issues will have on the
Company's financial condition or re-
sults of operations. The Company and
cotenant companies are actively
negotiating Unit 2 Settlement cap, con-
tractor litigation and operating pru-
dence issues, An "agreement-in-
principle" has been reached with re-
spect to these and other Unit 2 issues
which would close all issues of pru-
dence with respect to the construction
cost of Unit 2 and operations through
January 19, 1990 and allocate litigation
proceeds, net of litigation costs, equally
between ratepayers and shareholders

'SeeNote 10 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements).

The Company has been studying the
advantages and disadvantages of con-
tinuing the operation of Unit 1. Pursuant
to the 1989 Agreement, the Company
will further develop the study in good
faith consultation with the parties to the
1989 Agreement and submit it to the
PSC no later than February 28, 1990.
The Company will also submit to the
PSC and provide to the parties to the
1989 Agreement, on or before June 1,
1990, a study of the advantages and dis-
advantages of a separation, sale or
other action with respect to the Com-
pany's gas business, and further de-
velop that analysis in cooperation with
the PSC Staff. The Company is unable
to predict fhe results of these studies,
what action may be Initiated based
upon such results or the impact that any
such actions will have on the Com-

EARNED RATE OF RETURN
ON COMMON EQUITY

1$.P/o

12.7%%d

8.7%

1985 1986 1987 1988 1989

The followingdiscussion and analysis
highlights items having a significant ef-
fect on operations during the three-year
period ended December 31, 1989. It may
not be indicative of future operations or
earnings particularly in light of the 1989

4

pany's financial condition or results of
operations.

In 1989, the Company achieved a
5.6% return on common equity as com-
pared with 8.7% in 1988 and 12.7% in
1987 (excluding the Unit 2 write-off). AI-
though no authorized return on equity
was established in the 1988 two-year
Stipulation Agreement, the Company
had anticipated a return on equity of
approximately 9.4% in 1989 and 10% in
1988. The authorized return on equity at
December 31, 1987 was 13.0%. The re-
turn on equity for 1990, while based
upon certain assumptions that cannot
be predicted with accuracy, is expected
to be higher than the actual earned re-
turn on equity for 1989 as a conse-
quence of, among other things, the an-
ticipated return to service of Unit 1 and
certain provisions of the 1989 Agree-
ment which establish minimum and
target interest coverage (without AFC)
levels during 1990. However, the expec-
tations for 1990 do not reflect the im-
pact, ifany, of the resolution of the out-
sfanding regulatory issues referenced
in the 1989 Agreement. As a result of
deferrals utilized in an effort to achieve
the target coverage'evels, non-cash
earnings will represent in excess of 75%
of expected earnings available to Com-'on Stockholders, as compared to 47%-
in 1989. The deferred costs are to be
recovered generally over no longer than
a three-year period beginning January
1, 1991, decreasing the percentage of
non-cash earnings during that period.
(See Note 11. Rates and Regulatory
Matters —1989 Agreement.)
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Agreement. It should be read in con-
junction with the Notes to Consolidated
Fiftancial Statements and other finan-
cial and statistical information appear-
ing elsewhere in this report.

Electric revenues increased $286.8
million or 13.5% over the three-year
period. This increase results prirriarily
from increased sales to ultimate con-
sumers reflecting a combination of

weather-related sales and load growth
in the Company's service territory, base
rate increases effective in 1987, fuel ad-

'ustment clause revenues, the recording
of unbilled electric revenues in accor-
dance with the Stipulation Agreement

'nd

increased miscellaneous revenues.
offset in part by decreased sales to
other electric systems, as indicated Jn

the table below:

35,296

5,286
34 347

3,579

30,0IO
30,76

ELECTRIC SALES

35,684
4,154

st,530

34,995
1,732

33„263

35,396

1,195
34,201

Millionsof Kw.hrs.

'lectric revenues

Increase (decrease) from prioryear
ln millions ofdollars

1989 I988 1987 Total

Sales to ultimate consumers............
Increase in base rates
Fuel and purchased power cost revenues
Sales to other electric systems..........
Unbilled electric revenues..............
Miscellaneous operating revenues ......

$ 51.1 $ 82.0 $ 43A
12.9 49.7

61.0 ., 39.8 (53,8)
(2.2) (57.8) 22.2

(39.8) — 62.5
4.8 '4.1 (23.1)

$176.5
62.6
47.0

(37.8)
22.7
15.8

1885 1986 1987 1988 1989

C

$ 74.9 $ 173.5 $ 38.4 $286.8

TOTALELECTRIC ANDGAS
OPERATING REVENUES Mlfffonsofdollars

Changes in fuel and purchased power
cost revenues are ge'nerally margin=
neutral while sales to other utilities,
based upon regulatory sharing
mechanisms, generally result in low
margin contribution. Thus, fluctuations
in these revenue components do not
have a significant impact on net operat-
ing income. The Company was permit-
ted to recognize in" 1988 earnings un-
billed revenues in an amount equal to
the revenue required to amortize $39
million of the Company's investment in
the discontinued Lake Erie Generating
Station and to recoup other specified
costs. Additional amounts of unbilled
electric revenues were" amortized in
1989 to offset other specified costs.
Therefore the effect of accrual of un-
bilied electric revenues on net operat-
ing income was minimal. Included in,
1988 and.1989 fuel and purchased
power cost revenues are replacement

power costs associated with the.Unit 1

outage,,however, such revenues in 1989
reflect a reduction of $40.7 million relat-
ing to the effects of the Interim Relief
Agreement.

Electric kilowatt-hour sales were 35.4
billion in 1989, an increase of 1.1% from
1988 but a decrease of 0.8% from 1987.
The 1989 increase reflects increased
sales in most customer classifications,
partly offset by a continued decline in
sales to other electric systems caused
by unfavorable price competition in the
wholesale energy market. (See Electric
and Gas Statistics-Electric Sales ap-
pearing on page 44). The Company ex-
pects moderate weather-adjusted
growth in sales to ultimate consumers
in 1990. Details of the changes in elec-
tric revenues and kilowatt-hour sales by
customer group are highlighted in the
table below:

$2~695

$2,098

1985

$2~660

$2,132
$2,623

$2,170

1986 1987

$~2800

$2,343

2 906

$2,419

$487

-1 988 1989

Class of service

1989 %Increase (decrease) from prioryear
%of

Electric 1989 1988 1987
Revenues Revenues Sales Revenues Sales Revenues Sales

Residential ......., ~ .. 34.P/o" 4.6o/o '.6o/o 9.(P/o 4.6'/o 5.2'/o 3.2/o
Commercial ........., 36.1, 5.6 2.2 5.7 4.3 2.1 3.3
Industrial ............. 20.1 6.1 3.7 5.2 7.5 '3.0) 1.1

MUnicipal service ..... 1.8 2.6 (3.8) 1.5 0.8 (1.0) 0.4

Total to ultimate
consumers ......... 92.8 5.3 2.8 6.7 5.5 2.0 2.5

Other electric systems . 2.4 (3.6) (31.0) (49.0) (58.3) 23.2 16.1
Miscellaneous .. 4.8 (23.2) — 179.2 — (30.0)

'Total ..... .. 100.0o/o 3.2o/o 1.1% 8.(P/o (1.9)% 1.8/o 3.9/o
a
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On March 13, 1987, the PSC approved
a 4.0o/o electric rate increase to provide
the Company additional annual reve-
nues of $74,898,000 based on (i) fore-
cast sales for the twelve months ended
March 31, 1988, (li) a 13.0o/o return on
equity, and (iii) the inclusion of $1.625
billion of construction work-in-progress
(CWIP) in electric rate base ($1.5 billion,
relating to Unit 2). The new rates, put
into effect on March 16, 1987, reflected
tax law changes of the Tax Reform'Act
of 1986 and a reduction to 13.0o/o from
14.0/o return on equity requested by the
Company. No adjustment to gas rates
was requested by the Company in con-
nection with this rate decision.

Rate action initiated in 1987 sought

$119.5 million (5.8%) additional electric
revenues based upon forecast opera-
tions for the rate year ending June 30,
1989 and 14.25% return on equity. The
Company, as discussed above, reached
a negotiated resolution of this request
which resulted in, among other things,
no increase in base electric rates
through June 30, 1990. As a result of the
1989 Agreement discussed above, the
base rate freeze has been extended to
Oecember 31, 1990; and rate adjust-
ments to be effective January 1, 1991
will be determined in the latter part of
1990.

Gas revenues decreased $41.1 million
or 7.8o/o over the three-year period. As
shown by the table below, this decrease

is primarily attributable to certain large
commercial and industrial customers
now purchasing gas directly from pro-
ducers and only having the Company
transport the gas to them, offset partly
by increased residential sales. Rates for
transported gas generally yield margins
similar to margins on gas sold directly
by the Company. As a result, substantial
decreases in gas revenues caused by
the migration of customers to the trans-
ported gas classification have not had a
significant impact on earnings from gas
operations. Also, changes In purchased
gas adjustment clause revenues are
generally margin-neutral.

GAS SALES Millionsor deka)hem)s

Gas revenues

increase (decrease) from prioryear
in millions ofdollars

1989 1988 1987 Total

108 4

100.8
4,9
95,9

103.2
21,9

108.7
27.3

81.4

114.5

33.8

Purchased gas adjustment clause
revenues

Increase (decrease) in
residential sales ..... ~ . ~........

Oecrease in commercial and
industrial sales ......,..........

Transportation of customer-owned
gas .

Miscellaneous operating revenues .

11.6 18.9 (8.8) 21.7

(7.4) (15.1) (61.9) (84.4)

6,0
(3.0)

$ $ 0.7

2.3
3.6

$ $ 5

9.3
(1.9)

$ (75.3)

17.6
(1.3)

$ (4).1)

$ 23.5 $ (6.'2) $ (12.0) $ 5.3

1985 1988 1987 1988 1989
Gas sales, excluding transportation of customer-owned gas, were 80.7 million

dekatherms in 1989, a 0.9/o decrease from 1988 (See Electric and Gas Statistics-
Gas Sales appearing on page 44). The decrease for 1989 includes a 3.6% increase
in safes in the residential class, reflecting a combination of weather-related safes
and load growth, offset by a 3.3% decrease in sales in the commercial class and a
38.9/o decrease in sales in the industrial class as a result of competition from oil
and the ability of customers to purchase gas directly from producers. The Com-
pany transported 33.8 million dekatherms for customers purchasing gas directly
from producers and expects a continued increase in such transportation activities.
To the extent the increase is due to existing customers electing to purchase gas
directly from suppliers, there will be a corresponding reduction in gas revenues.
Changes in gas revenues and dekatherrn sales by customer group are detailed in
the table below:

1989 % Increase (decrease) from prioryear
%of
Gas 1989 1988 1987

Class of service Revenues Revenues Sales Revenues Sales Revenues Sales

RSSIderrtiai .......... 65.2/o 9.P/o 3.6o/o 3.P/o 6,3o/o (5.6)% (2.8)%
Commercial ....,..... 25.8 5.0 (3.3) (1..0) 1.8 (15.2) (13.6)
Industrial ...,........ 2.5 (35.2) (38.9) (36.1) (41.0) (56.6) (53.5)
Total to ultimate

consumers......, .. 93.5
Other gas systems,... 1.9
Transportation of

customer-owned
gas s ~ ~ ~ ~ w 4o1

Miscellaneous ......, 0.5
43.3 24.0 19.8

(54.5) — 189.9
24.6 414.8 349.1

(49.7)

6.5 (0.8) (0.7) 0.6 (15.2) (14,5)
(1.0) (6.4) 6.4 (1 3.8) (38.4) (32.8)

TOtal .......... ~... 100.0o/o 6.7/o 5.3o/o 0.8o/o 5,3/o (14.2)% 2.3/o,
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In January 1988,„the PSC approved a
gas rate settlement proposed by the
Company and interested parties, which
maintains current gas base rates
through June 1990 while refunding ap-
proximately $5.7 million to gas custom-
ers to reflect changes resulting princi-
pally from the Tax Reform Act of 1986.
As a result of the 1989 Agreement dis-
cussed above, the Company extended
the gas base rate freeze through De-
cember 31, 1990, and rate adjustments
to be effective January 1„1991 are ex-
pected to be determined in the latter
part of 1990.

In 1989, electric fuel and purchased
power costs increased to $771 million
from $704 million in 1988 and $ 666 mil-
lion in 1987. The increase in 1989 is the
result of a $ 106.9 million increase in fuel
and purchased power costs incurred
offset by a $39.7 millioI1 net decrease in
costs deferred aifd recovered through
the operation'f the fuel adjustment
clause. Although generation and
kilowatt-hour purchases increased only
.4%, fuel and purchased power costs
incurred increased $ 4.8% because of
the use of higher cost fossil-fired gen-
eration and higher priced purchased
power to replace nuclear generation
due, to outages at Units 1 and 2 during
1988 and 1989 (See Electric and Gas
Statistics-Electricity Generated and
Purchased appearing on page 44).

The total cost of gas purchased in-
creased 8.9% in 1989, after having de-
creased 1.1% in 1988, and 20.8% in
1987. The increase for 1989 is the result
of a 2.7% increase in dekatherms pur-
chased to meet customer demand
coupled with higher rates charged by
the Company's suppliers and an in-
crease in purchased gas costs recog-
nized and recovered through the pur-
chased gas adjustment clause. In 1989,
the Company purchased 37/o of its gas
supply requirements on the spot mar-
ket, the maximum allowable under its
contract with its principal supplier. The
Company's net cost per dekatherm pur-
chased increased to $3.39 in 1989 from
$3.19 in 1988 and $3.27 in 1987.

Through the energy and purchased
gas adjustment clauses, costs of fuel,
purchased power and gas purchased,
above or below the levels allowed in ap-
proved, rate schedules, are billed or
credited to customers. The Company's
electric fuel adjustment clause provides
for partial pass-through of fuel and pur-
chased power-cost fluctuations from
those forecast in rate proceedings, with
the Company absorbing a specific por-
tion of increases or retaining a portion
of decreases to a maximum of $ 15 mil-
lion per rate year. The Company has ab-
sorbed@13.3, $21.4, and $3.6 million for

each of the three years ended De-
cember 31, 1989, 1988 and 1987, re-
spectively. Absorbed costs in 1988 ex-
ceeded $ 15 million due to the timing of
rate years and of variances from fuel
targets. In December 1987, the PSC es-
tablished a generic proceeding to
examine the operation of the existing
fuel adjustment clause, including
whether the tuel adjustment clause
should continue. The Company is un-
able to predict the outcome of this pro-
ceeding.

Other operation and maintenartce ex-
, penses increased $95.4 million or 14.3%
in 1989„after having increased 23.2/o in
1988 and decreased slightly in 1987.
This substantial increase results primar-
ily from Unit 2 becoming commercial in
1988 and increased costs resulting from
the continuing outage at Unit 1 and the
mid-cycle outage at Unit 2. The increase
in other operation and maintenance ex-
pense was partly offset by the deferral
of (i) nuclear improvement costs of ap-
proximately $7.1 million included in
Other Deferred Debits and (ii) $ 13.8 mil-
lion of expenses to meet the 1,60
minimum interest coverage ratio,
excluding AFC, pursuant to the 1989
Agreement and included in Deferred
Operating Expenses. In 1990, the Com-
pany-anticipates that expense deferrals
to achieve target coverages, after appli-
cation of cash surcharges, will approx-
imate $80 milliori.

Depreciation and amortization ex-
pense for 1989 increased 15.7% over
1988 and 15.6% over 1987, principally "

from Unit 2 becoming commerciaL
Net Federal and foreign income taxes

for 1989 decreased as a result of a re-
duction in taxable income. The increase
in taxes other than income taxes in the
three-year period is due principally to
higher property taxes resulting from
property additions and the reflection of
Unit 2 taxes that are now being charged
to operations.

Other income and deductions,
excluding Federal income taxes, in-
creased'$36.6 million from 1988. This
increase is primarily the result of the re-

'ording in 1988 of a $14 million refund
to customers and the write-oft of unre-
covered Lake Erie Generating Station
costs of approximately $6 million, in ac-
cordance with the Stipulation Agree-
ment, coupled with Increased AFC, in-
creased 1989 subsidiary earnings (prin-
cipally Opinac) and gains on the sales of
certain investments in 1989.

'Net interest charges increased $31.4
million in 1989, primarily the result of
the issuance of $300 million in First
Mortgage Bonds, $ 100 million
Medium-Term Notes, $ 69.8 million
NYSERDA Promissory Notes and in-

MAINTENANCEANDOTHER
OPERATION EXPENSE Millionsof dollara

508.3

364.0

546.8

397.7

668.9

467.9
542.8

383.9

764.3

558.1

144.3 149,1
201 0

158 9

ill
CD

1985 1986 1987 1988 1989

TOTALTAXESINCLUDINQ
INCOMETAXES Millionsof dollars

482

424
437

444

1985 1986 1987 1988 1989

creased costs related to short-term bor-
rowing. Dividends on preferred stock
decreased $3.9 million in 1989 as a re-
sult of net reductions in amounts out-
standing. The weighted average long-
term debt interest rate and preferred
dividend rate paid, reflecting the actual
cost of variable rate issues, changed to
9.18% and 7.71%, respectively, in 1989,
from 8.92%'and 7.90%, respectively, in
1988.
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Operating Revenues ($000's) ....
Gain from decline in

purchasing power on net
amounts owed ($000's) .......

Per Common Share:
Cash dividends deciared ......
Market price at year end.......

Average Consumer Price Index ..

1989 1988 1987

$2,906,043 $2,935,386 $2,863,603

163,729 $ 152,116 $ 160,923

$ .60
$. 14.38

124.0

$ 1.26
$ 13.63

118.3

$ 1.79
$ 13.10

113.6

FINANCIALPOSITION, LIQUIDITY
AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Financial Position. The Company's cap-
ital structure and earnings base has
been negatively impacted by the finan-
cial effects of the 1987 write-off of Unit
2's disallowed costs, the continued Unit,
1 outage and related Interim Relief
Agreement.'The capital structure at De-
cember 31, 1989 was 57.2'/o long-term
debt, 9.6/o preferred stock and 33.2'/o
common equity as compared to 55.1/o,
10.T/o and 34.2/o, respectively, at De-
cember 31, 1988 and 54.9/o, 12.0/o and
33.1/o, respectively, at December 31,
1987. As a result, of a number of factors,
including the effects of the Unit 1 out-
age and related Interim Relief Agree-
ment, the impact of the 1988 Stipulation
Agreement, which, because of chang-
ing'conditions did not provide for the
costs of a number of programs the
Company js now incurring, and the re-
liance on debt financing, the Company
has been unable to improve its capital
structure. As discussed further below,
the Company is considering other forms

of financing in 1990 to improve its capi-
tal structure. Book value of the common
stock was $ 14.07 per share at December
31, 1989 as compared to $ 13.87 per
share at December 31, 1988 and $13.82
per share at December 31, ]987; the in-
crease is primarily attributable to the
omission of the third and fourth quarter
1989 common stock dividends.

The ratio of earnings to fixed charges
for 1989 was 1.71. This is compared to
the 1988 ratio of 2.10. The ratio in 1987
was 1.65 (excluding the cumulative ef-
fect of adoption of SFAS 90) which was
negatively impacted by the 1987 Unit 2
write-off. The 1989 ratio of earnings to
fixed charges reflects the effects of the
1989 Agreement, which provided for
near-term financial stabilization while
establishing a framework for resolving
regulatory and financial issues facing
the Company. A key aspect of this fi-
nancial stabilization was the establish-
ment of minimum and target interest
coverage levels (without AFC) in 1989

Effects of Changing Prices. The rate of inflation was below 5/o in 1989. The Com-
pany is especially sensitive to inflation because of the amount of capital it must
raise to finance its construction program and because its prices are regulated
using a rate base that reflects the historical cost of utility plant.

The Company's consolidated financial statements are based on historical events
and transactions when the purchasing power of the dollar was substantially differ-
'ent from the present. The effects of inflation on most utilities, including the Com-

'any,are most significant in the areas of depreciation and utilityplant. The Com-
pany could not replace its utilityplant and equipment for the historical cost value at
which they are recorded on the books. In addition, the Company would probably
not replace these assets with identical ones due to technological advances and
regulatory changes which have occurred. In light of these considerations, the de-
preciation charges in operating expenses do not reflect the current cost of provid-
ing service. The Company, however, willseek additional revenue to cover the costs
of maintaining service as assets are replaced.

During a period of inflation, holders of monetary assets suffer a loss of general
purchasing power while holders of monetary liabilities experience a gain. The gain
from decline in purchasing power of net amounts owed is primarily attributable to
the substantial amount of debt which has been used to finance utilifyplant. Since
the depreciation on utility plant is limited to the recovery of historical costs, the
Company does not have the opportunity to realize a holding gain on debt and is
limited to recovery only of the embedded cost of debt capital. The following table
presents selected financial data restated for the effects of changing prices in
average 1989 dollars:

and 1990 as discussed at greater length
under Results of Operations above. In
order to maintain a minimum interest
coverage level of 1.60 (without AFC)
through 1989, the Company deferred
$13.8 mi)lion of expenses for future re-
covery.

The Unit 2 write-off and its resultant
impact on the Company's earnings
capability necessitated a reduction in
the common stock dividend rate in 1987
to an annual level of $ 3.20 per share. On
August 31, 1989, the Board of Directors,
after considering the uncertainties fac-
ing the Company, including the level
and timing of future rate relief, the re-
start of Unit 1, and the risks associated
with a number'f ongoing regulatory
proceedings, determined to omit the
third quarter common stock dividend.
Resumption of payment of the common
stock dividend will depend on the res-
olution of issues affecting the long-
range financial condition of the Com-
pany, including the return to service of
Unit 1 and the effect, if any, of such re-
sumption of common stock dividends
on the 1989 Agreement, as discussed in
Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Fi-
nancial Statements. (See also; Market
Price of Gommon Stock and Related
Stockholder Matters).

Construction and Other Capital Re-
quirements. The Company's overall re-
quirements consist of amounts for the
Company's construction program,
working capital needs, maturing debt
issues and sinking fund provisions on
outstanding debt and preferred stock
and have been affected by the Com-
pany's efforts in recent years to lower
capital costs through refinancing. Total
capital needs have decreased since
1987 as Unit 2 then approached comple-
tion and as budgeted construction ex-
penditures were curtailed. Annual ex-
penditures for the years 1987-1989 for
construction and nuclear fuel, including
related AFC and overheads capitalized,
were $457.1 million, $366.1 million and
$ 411.9 million, respectively. Capital
needs have also been affected by the
extended Unit 1 outage and the suspen-
sion of the common stock dividend.

The 1990 estimate for construction
additions, overheads capitalized and
nuclear fuel, excluding AFC, is approx-
imately $442 million, of which approxi-
mately 80'/o is expected to be funded by
internal sources. Mandatory and op-
tional debt and preferred stock retire-
ments and other requirements are ex-
pected to add approximately another
$233 million to the Company's capitaf
requirements, for a total of $ 675 million.
Current estimates of total capital re-



NIAGARA MOHAWK POWER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

quirements for the years 1991-1994 are
$703 million, $675 million, $625 million
and $658 million, respectively. Such es-
timates take into consideration, among,
other things, the 1989 Agreement and
the extension of the outage at Unit 1

through the second quarter of 1990 and
resumption of the common stock divi-
dend in 1991, which is dependent upon
a number of factors discussed above
under"'Financial Position". Future capi-
tal requirements rely on life-extension
of the Company's existing facilities, the
competitive bidding procedures in New
York State for independent power pro-
duction to satisfy future capacity re-
quirements and demand-side manage-
ment. The Company recently requested
bids for 350 MW of electric capacity to
be In-service by late 1994. Therefore,
the Company's future capital require-
ments do not include any current plans
by the Company to construct new base

,
load generating facilities. Although
peak electric load continues to increase
in the Northeast, exacerbating concerns
over available capacity, the Company
believes it should be able to meet its
growth in the 1990~ through its bidding
program, existing independent power
producers'ontracts and demand-side
management programs.

Considered within the Company's fu-
ture capital requirements are plans to
construct, in 1990-1991, a $21 million

,gas pipeline across the St. Lawrence
River to import Canadian gas supplies.
However, the Canadian National Energy
Board turned down an application from
the Canadian supplier to export gas,
which may jeopardize the project. The
Company has appealed this decision.
The primary objective of the pipeline is
to improve the strategic diversity of the
Company's gas supply, and as such, de-
lays or abandonment of the project will
not Impair the Company's ability to pro-
vide gas to its customers,

Future capital requirements do not re-
flect the potential costs associated with
the President's proposed Clean Air Act
legislation. The provisions for stack
emission limitations, including the tim-
ing and level of reductions, could sub-
stantially increase capital requirements
through 1994, primarily at the Com-
pany's Huntiey and Dunkirk coal sta-
tions. The Company is presently unable
to assess the potential costs that may be
associated with the passage of the pro-
posed Clean Air Act.

Provisions have been made within the
capital requirements forecast to ad-
dress the irlvestigation and remediation
of both Company owned and Company
associated hazardous waste sites. Such
amounts, which approximate $55 mil-
lion through 1994 and include the Com-

pany's share of remediation costs for
sites with which it is associated, are es-
timates based upon certain site specific
studies and, in most cases, preliminary
assessments of the extent of contami-
nation. The Company is awaiting ap-
proval by the appropriate regulatory
agencies of plans submitted to re-
mediate certain sites. Actual Company
expenditures for these sites is depen-
dent upon the total cost of investigation
and remediation, as well as the deter-
mination of the Company's share of re-
sponsibility for such costs. The Com-
pany believes that costs incurred in the
investigation and restoration process
are recoverable in the ratesetting
process. (See Note 12 of Notes to Con-
solidated Financial Statements under
"Environmental Issues" ).

The Nuclear Regulatory Commission
(NRC) issued regulations in 1988 requir-
ing owners of nuclear power plants to
place costs associated with decommis-
sioning activities for contaminated por-
tions of nuclear facilities into an exter-
nal trust at a substantially accelerated
rate from what has heretofore been re-
quired. Further, the NRC established
guidelines for determining minimum
amounts that must be available in the
trust for these specified decommission-
ing activities at the time of decommis-
sioning. Based upon studies applying
the NRC "guidelines, the Company has
estimated that the minimum require-
ments for Unit 1 and its share of Unit 2,
respectively, will be $305 million and
$396 million in future dollars. These
amounts exceed the current PSC or-
dered cost recovery allowance for total
decommissioning costs associated with
the Units. As a result, the NRC regula-
tions requiring an external trust and es-
tablishing a minimum funding level,
which have not been considered in the
ratesetting environment, could require
the Company to increase its future capi-
tal requirements. In an application filed
on August 4, 1989 to increase the Com-
pany's electric and gas base rates, the
requested allowances for recovery of
decommissioning costs for Units 1 and
2 were based upon the Company's re-
vised decommissioning cost estimates
and compliance with the NRC
guidelines. The Company can provide
no assurance as to the allowances
which willultimately be approved by the
PSC. The Company has until July 1990
to file a decommissioning report for
each Unit with the NRC. On March 1,
1989 the PSC issued an order request-
ing comments from utilities in connec-
tion with a generic proceeding to
examine the funding and taxation as-
pects of accumulating nuclear decom-
missioning funds in an external trust in

response to the NRC regulations. The
Company has responded to the order
and is awaiting final resolution of this
matter by the PSC.

ANNUALEXTERNAL
FINANCINGBYTYPE Millionsof dollars

584.1
,0

185.3

323,8

780.5

5,0
4.6

700.9

346.5

24.5

297,0

407.2

316,5

37 .

366,4

I
CQ

CI

1985 1986 1987 1988 1989

The Company expects external
financing of approximately $208 million
in 1990. This level of financing antici-
pates a return to service of Unit 1 in the
second quarter of 1990, omission of the
common stock dividend through 1990
and is impacted by certain provisions of
the 1989 Agreement (See Note 11 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial State-
ments). To minimize the dilutive effect
on earnings per share of the Issuance of
new common stock, the Company sus-
pended sales of new common stock
under the Dividend Reinvestment and
Employee Stock Plans effective during

Llquldlty and Capital, Resources. Cash
flows to meet the Company's require-
ments for operating, investing and
financing activities during the past
three years are reported in the Consoli-
dated Statements of Cash Flows on
page 25.

During 1989, the Company raised ap-
proximately $372.2 million through ex-
ternal sources, consisting of $400 mil-
lion of debt, $5.'8,million of common
stock from the issuance of 466,558 new
shares through the Dividend Reinvest-
ment and Employee Stock Plans and a
net decrease of $33.6 million of short-
term debt and intermediate term bank
revolving credit obligations. The Com-
pany also completed $6.3 millionof cap-
ital lease financing and raised $71 mil-
lion internally through the sale of an
additional portion of its accounts re-
ceivable. These amounts include exter-
nal financing done directly by the Com-
pany's subsidiaries, which amounted to
$23.9 million in 1989 through bank re-
volving credit borrowings.
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the first quarter of 1989 and has since
purchased these requirements on the
open market. The anticipated amount of
external financing in 1990 reflects this
decision. Although external financing
plans for 1991 to 1994 have not been
finalized, the aggregate level of financ-
ing during this four year period will re-
flect, among other things, the substan-
tial concerns relating to the Company's
nuclear operations, the potential addi-
tional requirements to meet the NRC's
new decommissioning regulations, cap-
ital expenditures relating to load relia-
bility projects and gas pipeline expan-
sion (including the Trans York pipeline
to bring gas supply from Canada, if ap-
proved), the effects of rate regulation
and various regulatory initiatives as well
as the need to improve the Company's
financial position. The nature, timing
and amount of such future financings
will also depend, in part, on construc-
tion expenditure levels, duration of and
costs associated with the Unit 1 outage,
retirements of securities, timeliness and
adequacy of rate relief, the level of in-
ternally generated funds and dividend
payments, the availability and cost of
capital and the ability of the Company to
meet its interest and preferred stock div-
idend coverage requirements, to satisfy
legal requirements and restrictions in
governing instruments and to maintain
an adequate credit rating.

The Company believes that tradition-
ally available sources of financing
should be sufficient to satisfy the Com-
pany's external financing needs during
this period. As of December 31, 1989,
under the applicable earnings test set
forth in the indenture, the Company
would be permitted to issue up to $850
million of First Mortgage Bonds assum-
ing a 10t14% interest rate and the exis-
tence of sufficient Additional Property,
as defined in the Company's indenture,
to secure that level of indebtedness.
However, based on the amount of Addi-
tional Property currently certified and

Standard 8
Poors
Corporation
Moody's
Investors
Ser'vice
Duff 8 Pheips
Fitch
Investors
Service

BBB BBB- BBB-

Baa2 Baa3BBB'BB- ba2
BB

BBB- BB+ BB

Increased levels of debt financing as
necessitated by the factors discussed
above, could result in a further reduc-
tion in the Company's credit rating,
Further reductions of the Company's
credit ratings and the attendant adverse
effect on the interest or dividend rates
that may be required in future issues of
its securities, especially if ratings were
downgraded to or remained below in-
vestment grade, could be expected to
reduce the Company's financing fl'exi-
bility and adversely affect its capital

available, the Company could onl'y issue
approximately $ 321 million of First
Mortgage Bonds. In addition, the Com-
pany has the ability to issue approxi-
mately $1,021 million of First Mortgage
Bonds at December 31, 1989 on the
basis of retired bonds without regard to

'the earnings or Additional Property
tests. $ 100 million of Preference Stock
is currently authorized for sale and is
expected to be issued in 1990. The
Company does not expect to be able to
issue additional Preferred Stock until
1993, except for refunding issues, as a
result of a restrictive provision in the
Company's charter.'The Company will
also continue to explore and utilize, as
apprppriate, other methods of raising
funds. In January 1990, the Company
sold an additional $29 million of ac-

~ counts receivable. (See Note 12 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial State-
ments).

The Company's ratings at December
31, 1989 were:

Secured Unsecured Preferred
Debt Debt Stock

structure and financial position.
Further, the Company could be pre-
cluded from issuing commercial paper,
which would necessitate the use of
longer-term financing and thus putting
further pressure on credit ratings.
Moody's lowered the Company's com-
mercial paper rating to P3 in October,
1989. A key objective of the 1989
Agreement as discussed above, was to
stabilize the Company's financial condi-
tion and attempt to maintain its senior
securities ratings at investment grade.
However, no assurance can be given
even if the Company can achieve the
targets established in the 1989 Agree-
ment that its current senior

securities'atingswill be maintained or, con-
versely, that failure to achieve such
targets will result in a downgrade.

Ordinarily, construction related
short-term borrowings are refunded
with long-term 'securities on a continu-
ing basis. Bank credit arrangements
which, at December 31, 1989, totaled
$515 million, (including $180 million in
commitment under Revolving Credit
Agreements, $75 million Direct Pay Let-
ter of Credit Facility and Revolving
Credit Agreement of Oswego Facilities
Trust, $54 million in one-year commit-
ments under Credit Agreements, $ 106
million in lines of credit and a $ 100 mil-
lion Bankers Acceptance Facility
Agreement) are used by the Company to
enhance flexibility as to the type and
timing of its Iong-term security sales.
Such credit arrangements were in-
creased in 1989 from $335 million at
December 31, 1988 to provide the Com-
pany more borrowing capability if
needed.

The unsecured debt limitation im-
posed by the Company's charter is 10%%d

of consolidated capitalization plus $50
million, which, as of January 1, 1990,
equates to approximately $593 million
and against which the Company had
outstanding unsecured debt of approx-
imately $388 million.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
AtDecember 31 ~

let/xx>sends oldo//e>s
1989 1988

ASSETS
Utilityplant, at original cost (Note 1)l
Electric plant
Nuclear fuel(Nofp3) .
Gas plant .,
Common plant
Construction work in progress

Total utilityplant
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization .

Netutilltyplant ..
Other property and Investments,..., ..

~ ~ ~

$6,726,656
410>207
650,175
149>554
387>520

8,324,112
2,283,307
6,040,805

215,836

$6,49?,398
404,686
611,671
138,226
315,644

7,967,625
2,090,170
5,877,455

155,257

Current assets:
Cash, including time deposits of $ 26,475 and $ 11,335, respectively ......
Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful

accounts of $3,600) (Note 12)
Unbilled electric revenues(Note 1),
Materials and supplies, at average cost:

Coal and oil forproduction of electricity....,... ~ .........,........
Other

Prepayments:
Taxes ~ ~ ~ % > ~

Pension expenSe(h/ote 8)
Other

Deferred debits:
Unamortized debt expense.
Deferred recoverable energy costs.........,....,....,...... ~ >,......
Deferred finance charges (Note 1)
Deferred operating expenses(hlofe 11) ................................

CAPITALIZATIONANDLIABILITIES
Capltalfzatlon (h/ofe 7):
Common stockholders'quity;

Common stock, issued 136,099,654 and
135,633,096 shares, respectively......,.

Capital stock premium and expense
Retained earnings........,..........,

Non-redeemable preferred stock
Redeemable preferred stock
Long-term debt....

Total capitalization,.......,..........
Current liabilities:
Short. term debt (Note 4) ...,
Long-term debt due within one year
Sinking fund requirements on redeemable preferred stock (Note 7) .....
Accounts payable
Payable on outstanding bank chec'ks
Customers'eposits ~ ~ > ~

Accrued taxes I' ~ ~ ~ > II > ~

Accrued interest
Accrued vacation pay................. "..

Deferred credltsr
Mandated refunds to customers ......................................
Accumulated deferred Federal income taxes .,
Deferred finance charges, (Note') .,
Unbilled electric revenues(Note 1) .....
Deferred pension settlement gain(Note 8) .

Other .. ~.... ~ .. >

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 3, 10 and 12) ....,....; >......

47,912

205,260
131,100

69,071
113,550

44,814
89,150,
25,121

725,978

121>515
93,846

239>880
13,980

123,253
592,474

$7,575,093

$ 136>100
1,649,285

129>1 46

1,914>531
290,000
267,530

3,249>328

5,721,389

35,671
196,508

17>980
291,658

47>810
10,088
10,379
81,533
30,379
40,675

762,681

656,235
239,880

45,899
79,304
69,705

1>091>023

$7> 575>093

19,027

228,914
126,000

4?,382
76,950

39,914
6,398

20,244
564,829

128.520
32,239

239,880

77,861

478,500

$7,076,041

$ 135,633
1,640,593

105,168

1,881,394
290,000
295.510

2,995,748
5,462,652

108,000
110,571

17,980
219,798

82,2?9
9,985

16,132
71,842
29,904
39,640

706,131

5,613
562,811
239,880

63,534

35,420
907,258

$7,076,041
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Consolidated Statements ofIncome
and Retained Earnings

For the year ended December 31,

Operating revenues:
Electric
Gas

Operating expenses:
Operation:

Fuel forelectric generation
Electricity purchased
Gas purchased
Other operation expenses

Maintenance .

Depreciation and amortization(Note 2)
Federal and foreign income taxes (Note 9) .......
Other taxes .

Amortization of investment in generating station
project(Note 2)

Operating Income ..
Other Income and deductions:
Allowance for other funds used during

construction (Note 1)
Federal income taxes ..
Current year effect of adoption of SFAS No. 90(Note 10):

Disallowed plant costs .

Related income taxes ...........
Other items (net)

Income before Interest charges

Interest charges:
Interest on long-term debt .

Otherinterest .

Allowance for'borrowed funds used during construction ~

Income before cumulative effect of accounting change .,
Cumulative effect on prior years of adoption of

SFASNo.90(Note 10)...
Netlncome(loss) ..
Dividends on preferred stock
Balance available for common stock .. ~ ..
Dividends on common stock

Retained earnings at beginning of year ..
Retained earnings at end of year .

Average number of shares of common
stock outstanding (in thousands)

Per average share of common stock;
Balance available for common stock before

cumulative effect of accounting change ......
Cumulative effect on prioryears of adoption of

SFAS No.90(Note10) .

Balance available for common stock

Dividends paid

() Denotes deduction

1989

$2,418,662
487,381

2,906,043

415,362
355,706
288,734
558>073
2061214
210,873
105,103
354,019

2,494,084
411,959

10,085
14,770

11,734
36,589

448,548

296,232
10>824
(9,291)

297,765

150,783

150,783
45,182

105,601
81,623
23,978

105,168
129,146

136>052

.78

$ .78

$ .60

ln thousands ofdollars
1988

$2,343,732
456,721

2,800,453

360,373
343,511
265,033
467,873
200,969
182,209
134,451
329,869

39,813
2,324,101

476,352

5,149
13,587

(19,945)
(1,209)

475,143

264,866
7,336

(5,873)
266,329

208,814

208,814
49,157

159,657
158,228

1,429
103,739
105,168

131,853

1.21

1.21

1.20

1987

$2,170,191
453,239

2,623,430

339,382
326,152
268,099
383,874
158,939
157,631
195,472
308,483

2,138,032
485,398

20,563
17,622

(268,400)
50,400
10,947

(168,868)
316,530

264,472
4,587

(10,315)
258,744

57,786

(615,000)

(557,214)
52,017

(609,231)
208,881

(818,112)
921,851

$ ,103,739

127,435

.05

(4.83)

(4.78)

1.64
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Plows
Increase (Oecrease) In Cash

For the year ended December 31,
fn thousands of dollars

1989 1988 1987

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) .

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Cumulative effect on prioryears of adoption of SFAS No. 90........
Disallowed plant costs .

Depreciation and amortization.
Amortization of nuclear fuel .

Loss on investment in NM Uranium, Inc........
Provision for deferred Federal income taxes
Allowance for other funds used during construction ...............
Deferred recoverable energy costs . ~

Gain on sale of investments .

Unbilled electric revenues
Decrease in mandated refunds to customers,
Deferred operating expenses . ~ >

(Increase) decrease in net accounts receivable ......:...........,.
(Increase) in materials and supplies
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses ........ -......
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest and taxes ......,..........
Changes in other assets and liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities.
Cash flows from Investing activities:

Construction additions..........,.............
Nuclear fuel
Less: Allowance for other funds used during construction ...,...
Acquisition of utilityplant
(Increase) decrease in materials and supplies .

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses ....
Payments under Cotenant Agreement
Increase in other investments
Other ~

'etcash used ln Investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from sale of common stock .

Proceeds from sale of preferred stock
Sale of mortgage bonds
Issuance of other long-term debt.
Redemption of preferred stock
Reductions of long-term debt
Net change in short-term debt and revolving

credit agreements .

Dividends paid .

Change in dividends payable
Other

Net cash provided by (used In) financing activities ....
Net Increase (decrease) In cash ..
Cash at beginning of year ...
Cash at end ofyear

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow Information:
Cash paid during the year for:

Interest
Income taxes

~ Supplemental schedule of noncash Investing and financing
activities:
Capital lease obligations incurred

$150,783

210,873
20,767
14,500
851733

(10,085)
(61,607)

(75660)
(22,735),

(5,613)
(13)980)
23,654

(34,973)
63,315

3,938
2)349

419,259

(387,178)
(18,416)
101085

(395,509)
(23,316)
155829

(52,162)
(6,426)

(461,584)

55841

300,000
100,000
(27,980)
(98,652)

(33,629)
(126,805)

(41,175)
(6,390)

711210

28,885
19>027

$ 47,912

$314,328
3,577

$ 6,293

$208,814

222,022
16,362
7)500

88,761
(5,149)

(23,803)
(1,477)

(62,466)
(30,554)

76,114
(3,000)

-46,727
" (2,198)
(28,366)
509,287

(349,823)
(3,759)
5(149

(348,433)
(2,133)
12,877

(171,100)
(39,723)

9,197
(539,315)

90,683

200,000
69,800

(56,980)
(137,193)

46,736
(207,385)

30,217
(16,614)

19,264

(10,764)
29,791

$ 19,027

$299,351
42,348

$ 12,560

$ (557,21 4)

615,000
268,400
157,631

28,748
13,000

102,340
(20,563)

1,499
(13,000)

(27,062)

(15,678)
(3,452)
38,667
11,181

(27,807)

571,690

(409,068)
(28,765)
20,563

(417,270)
772

(6,334)

(22,823)
12,333

(433,322)

24,459
25,000

100,000
270,060
(62,380)

(273,005)

(72,987)
(260,898)

(7,693)
(27,112)

(284,556)

(146,188)
175,979

$ 29,791

$ 284,348
44,479

$ 19,276
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Company is subject to regulation by the New York State
Public Service Commission (PSC) and the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (FERC) with respect to its rates for
service and the maintenance of its accounting records. The
Company's accounting policies conform to generally accepted
accounting principles, as applied to regulated public utilities,
and are in accordance with the accounting requirements and
ratemaking practices of the regulatory authorities.

I'rinciplesof Consolidation: The consolidated financial state-
ments include the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany balances and transactions have
been eliminated. Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries
are translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange rate in effect at
the balance sheet date. Revenue and expense accounts are
translated at the average exchange rate in effect during the
year. Currency translation adjustments are recorded as a com-
ponent of equity and do not have a significant impact on finan-
cial condition.

Reclassifications: Certain amounts have been reclassified on
the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements to con-
form with the 1989 presentation.

Depreciation, Amortization and Nuclear Generating Plant De-
commissioning Costs: For accounting purposes, depreciation
is computed on the straight-line basis using the average or
remaining service lives by classes of depreciable property. In
addition, certain costs associated with the discontinued Lake
Erie Generating Station Project (see Note 2) were amortized
over shorter periods as approved by the PSC, For Federal in-
come tax purposes, the Company computes depreciation
using accelerated methods and shorter allowable depreciable
lives. Estimated decommissioning costs (costs to remove the
plant from service in the future) for the Company's Nine Mile
Point Nuclear Station Unit No. 1 (Unit 1) and its share of de-
commissioning costs of Unit 2 are being recovered in rates
through an annual allowance and charged to operations
through depreciation charges (see Note 10 "Nuclear Plant De-
commissioning").

Amortization of Nuclear Fuel: Amortization of the cost of nu-
clear fuel is determined on the basis of the quantity of heat
produced for the generation of electric energy. The cost of
disposal of nuclear fuel, which presently is $ .001 per kilowatt-
hour of net generation, is based upon a contract with the U.S.
Department of Energy. These costs are charged to operating
expense and recovered from customers through base rates or
through the fuel adjustment clause.

UtilityPlant: The cost of additions to utility plant and of re-
placements of retirement units of property is capitalized. Cost
includes direct material, labor, overhead and an allowance for
funds used during construction (AFC). Replacement of minor
items of utility plant and the cost of current repairs and
maintenance is charged to expense. Whenever utility plant is
retired, its original cost, together with the cost of removal, less
salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation,

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction: The Company
capitalizes AFC in amounts equivalent to the cost of funds
devoted to plant under construction. AFC rates are determined
in accordance with FERC and PSC regulations. The AFC rate ln
effect December 31, 1989 was 10.40/o. AFC is segregated into
its two components, borrowed funds and other funds, and is
reflected ln the Interest Charges section and the Other Income
and Deductions section, respectively, of the Consolidated
Statements of Income.

Effective April 1985, pursuant to PSC authorization, the
Company discontinued accruing AFC on $320 million of con-
struction work in progress (CWIP) for which a cash return was
being allowed through inclusion in rate base of that portion of
the investment in the Nine Mlle Point Nuclear Station Unit No.2
(Unit 2). This amount was increased to $680 million in April
1986 and $ 1,625 million (including $125 million of other CWIP)
in April 1981. Amounts equal to Unit 2's AFC which was no
longer accrued on the CWIP included in rate base have been
accumulated in deferred debit and credit accounts up to the
commercial oPeration date of Unit 2. The balance in the de-
ferred accounts, amounting to $239.9 million at December 31,
1989 and 1988, await future ratemaking disposition by the PSC.
A portion of the deferred credit could be utilized,to reduce
future revenue requirements over a period shorter than the life
of Unit 2 with a like amount of deferred debit amortized and
recovered in rates over the remaining life of Unit 2, as has been
the experience of other New York State utilities.

Revenues: Revenues are based on cycle billings rendered to
certain customers monthly and others bi-monthly. Although
the Company commenced the accrual in 1988 of electric rev-
enues for energy consumed and not billed at the end of the
fiscal year, the impact of such accruals have not yet been fully
recognized in the Company's results of operations in accor-
dance with the Stipulation Agreement. Approximately $22.7
millionand $ 62.5 million of such accrued electric revenues are
included in the results of operations for the years ended
December 31, 1989 and 1988, respectively, as specified within
the Stipulation Agreement and the remainder is included in
Deferred Credits. Remaining unrecognized amounts may be
used to reduce future revenue requirements. Pursuant to the
Stipulation Agreement, a total of $102 million of unbilled reve-
nues will have been recognized through June 30, 1990.

The Company's tariffs include electric and gas adjustment
clauses under which energy and purchased gas costs, respec-
tively, above or below the levels allowed in approved rate
schedules, are billed or credited to customers, The Company,
as authorized by the PSC, charges operations for energy and
purchased gas cost increases ln the period of recovery. The
PSC has periodically authorized the Company fo make
changes in the level of allowed energy and purchased gas
costs included in approved rate schedules. As a result of such
periodic changes, a portion of energy costs deferred at the
time of change would not be recovered or may be overrecov-
ered under the normal operation of the electric and gas ad-
justment clauses. However, the Company has been permitted
to amortize and bill or credit such portions to customers,
through the electric and gas adjustment clauses, over a
specified period of time from the effective date of each change.
The Company's electric fuel adjustment clause provides for
partial pass-through of fuel cost fluctuations from amounts
forecast with (he Company absorbing a specific portion of in-
creases or retaining a portion of decreases up to a maximum of
$15 million per rate year (However, See Note 10 "PSC investi-
gation of the Unit 1 Outage" ).



NIAGARA MOHAWK POWER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 27

Federal Income Taxes: In accordance with PSC requirements,
the tax effect of book and tax timing differences is flowed
through except as required by the Internal Revenue Code or
unless authorized by the PSC to be deferred. The Compariy
provides deferred taxes on certain benefits realized from de-
preciation, on deferred energy and purchased gas costs, on
nuclear fuel disposal costs accrued prior to April 1983, on nu-
clear generating plant decommissioning costs, on certain con-
struction overheads and on certain other items (see Note 9). As
directed by the PSC, the Company defers any amounts payable
pursuant to the alternative minimum tax rules. In conformity
with ratemaking practices of the PSC, the Company has not
provided deferred taxes on the cumulative amount of approxi-
mately $1.6 billion of other fax deductions which include cer-
tain depreciation differences and various construction over-
heads deductible when incurred or allocated for tax purposes
and capitalized and depreciated for accounting and ratemak-
ing purposes. The Company has claimed investment tax cred-
its and deferred the benefits of such credits as realized in ac-
cordance with PSC directives. Deferred investment credit is
amortized to Other Income and Deductions over the useful life
of the underlying property. For purposes of computing capital
cost recovery deductions and normalization, the asset basis
has been reduced by all or a portion of the credit claimed
consistent with then current tax laws.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) has is-
sued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 96
and No. 100 (SFAS No. 96 and No.100) "Accounting for Income
Taxes" and has recently issued a third SFAS (SFAS No. 103)
which will require the adoption of SFAS 96 for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 1991. The pronouncements con-
tinue the present comprehensive inter-period tax allocation
rules, but shift to'he use of the liabilitymethod for accounting
for deferred taxes rather than the deferred method required
under Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No, 11.
Regulated utilities are not exempt from the provisions of SFAS
No. 96, which specifically prohibit net-of-tax accounting and
reporting and require (i) recognition of a deferred tax liability
for tax benefits that are flowed through to customers when
temporary differences originate and (ii) adjustment of a de-
ferred tax liabilityor asset for an enacted change in tax laws or
rates. However, any Impact of the pronouncement should be
considered within the ratesetting environment, The adoption
of the requirements of SFAS No. 96 is not expected to signifi-
cantly'mpact the Company's financial condition or results of
operations.

Amortization of Debt Issue Costs: The premium or discount
and debt expenses on long-term debt issues and on certain
debt retirements prior to maturity, are amortized ratably over
the lives of the related issues and included in interest on long-
term debt (see Note 7).

Statement of Cash Flows: The Company considers all highly
liquid investments, purchased with a remaining maturity of
three months or less, to be cash equivalents.

NOTE 2. Depreciation and Amortization

The total provision fordepreciation and amortization, includ-
ing amounts charged to clearing accounts, was $212,067,000
for 1989, $ 1 83,385,000 for 1988 and $ 158,761,000 for 1987. The
1988 provision excludes approximately $39,800,000 resulting

from the amortization of costs associated with the discon-
tinued Lake Erie Generating Station Project (LEGS) in accor-
dance with the Stipulation Agreement (see discussion of the
Stipulation Agreement in Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations).
The remaining unrecovered cost of LEGS of approximately $6
million representing a portion of carrying charges accrued on
LEGS, was charged against Other Income and Deductions for
the year ended December 31, 1988. The percentage
relationship between the total provision for depreciation and
average depreciable property was 2.9'n 1989, 2.7'/o in 1988
and 3.0'/o in 1987. The Company performs depreciation studies
on a continuing basis and, upon approval by the PSC, periodi-
cally adjusts the rates of its various classes of depreciable
property.

NOTE 3. N M Uranium, Inc.

During 1976, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, N M
Uranium, Inc. (NMU), the Company purchased a 50 percent
undivided interest in uranium deposits and associated mining
equipment to be held by a jointly-owned mining venture, Ac-
quisition of this interest was made primarily to provide a more
assured future supply of nuclear fuel. Mining operations are
now complete and site restoration activities are underway and
expected to continue into the late 1990's. The investment in the
subsidiary, which includes costs incurred since acquisition
and AFC accrued through March 31, 1981, has been reduced
by the proceeds from the sale of uranium, net of tax, transfers
of uranium to the Company and write-offs of portions of the
Company's investment, and is included In the consolidated fi-
nancial statements as part of the nuclear fuel component of
utilityplant. Such investment, net of valuation reserves of $35.0
million and $20.5 million at December 31 ~

1989 and 1988, re-
spectively, totaled $30„1 million at December 31, 1989 and
$44.9 million at December 31, 1988.

In connection with the Company's rate decisions in March
1984, March 1986 and the Stipulation Agreement in 1988, the
PSC has aijowed, as the cost of approximately 1,313,000 lbs. of
NMU uranium utilized in the 1984, 1986 and current reloads of
Unit 1 and approximately 107,000 lbs. utilized for a portion of
the initial core at Unit 2, a price which represents the average
United States delivery price for the year of transfer, as reported
by the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE). The total allowed
value of these transfers using DOE prices is approximately
$45.0 million while the Company's cost is approximately $63.0
million. The differential between the Company's cost of this
NMU uranium and that amount allowed to be recovered In
rates charged to customers has been deferred subject to the
PSC approval of the comparison of cost to'market on an
aggregate basis over the life of the project and is reflected in
the Company's investment before valuation reserve in NMU.

In October 1988, NMU transferred approximately 186,000 lbs.
of uranium to the Company (with a cost of approximately $8.6
million) to be used in the 1990 refueling of Unit 2. Although the
allowable value for this material is expected to be the appro-
priate DOE price, such costs must still be reviewed in the Com-,
pany's next rate proceeding. Approximately 955,000 pounds of
uranium remain to be transferred, with the final transfer cur-
rently scheduled for 1992.

Based upon DOE's recently issued uranium price report
which reflects a continued decline in average delivery prices
from previous forecasts and the anticipated further decline in
average delivery prices, the Company now expects that, based
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upon costs allowed in rates to date and the estimated value of
remaining transfers, a minimum of $35 millionof its investment
in NMU may not be recoverable in rates. Accordingly, the
Company has reduced the carrying value of such investment
by $ 14.5 million in 1989, $7.5 million in 1988 and $13 million in
1987. The Company can provide no assurance that, all of its
remaining investment in NMU will ultimately be recovered;
however, if the remaining 955,000 pounds of uranium were
transferred at the January 1, 1990 spot market price of $9.00/
pound (contrasted with the DOE price of $25.65/pound al-
lowed for the 1988 transfer), an additional reserve of approxi-
mately $16 million would be necessary.

AtDecember 31:
ln thousands ofdollars
1989 1988

NOTE 4. Bank Credit Arrangements
At December 31, 1989, the Company had $515 million of

bank credit arrangements with 30 banks. These credit ar-
rangements consisted of $180 million in commitments under
Revolving Credit Agreements (including Revolving Credit
Agreement for HYDRA-CO), $75 million Direct Pay Letter of
Credit Facility and Revolving Credit Agreement for Oswego
Facilities Trust, $54 million in one-year commitments under
Credit Agreements, $106 million in lines of credit and $ 100
million under a Bankers Acceptance Facility Agreement. The
Revolving Credit Agreements extend into 1990 and 1991, and
the interest rate applicable to borrowing is based on certain
rate options available under the Agreements. All of the other
bank credit arrangements are subject to review on an ongoing
basis with intereSt rates negotiated at the time of use. The
Company also issues commercial paper. Unused bank credit
facilities are held available to support the amount of commer-
cial paper outstanding, including amounts currently issued in
connection with Interest Rate Exchange Agreements (see
Note 7).

The Company pays fees for substantially all of its bank credit
arrangements. The Bankers Acceptance Facility Agreement,
which is used to finance the fuel inventory for the Company's
generating stations, provides for the payment of fees only at
the time of issuance of each acceptance.

Amounts outstanding under Interest Rate Exchange
Agreements and Revolving Credit Agreements totaled $75 mil-
lion at December 31, 1989 and are recorded as long-term debt.

The following table summarizes additional information
applicable to short-term debt:

Operating revenues:
Electric .....,.........

Total ..

ln thousands ofdollars
1989 1988 1987

$2>418,662 $2,343,732 $2,170,191
487,381 456,721 453,239

$2,906,043 $2,800.453 $2,623,430

Operating Income before taxes:
Electric ................, $ 466,145 $ 564,275 $ 637,120
Gas ..................... 50,917 46,528 43,750

Total ....... ....... $ 517,062 $ 610,803 $ 680,870

Pretax operating Income, Including AFC:
Electric ..............,.. $ 484,706 $ 574,426 $ 667,610
Gas ..................... 51,732 47,399 44,138

Total ...,..............
Income taxes ..............
Other income and

deductions ..............
Interest charges............
Cumulative effect of

accountin chan e.......

536,438
105,103

26,504
307,056

621,825
134,451

(6,358)
272,202

711,748
195,472

(189,431)
269,059

615,000
Net income loss '......... $ 150,783 $ 208,814 $ 557,214

Depreciation and amortization:
Electric,...,....,....... $ 195,372 $ 167,566 $ 143,508
Gas ..................... 15,501 14,643 14,123

Total .................. $ 210,873 $ 182,209 $ 157,631

NOTE 5. Information Regarding the Electric
and Gas Businesses

The Company is engaged in the electric and natural gas util-
ity businesses. Certain information regarding these segments
is set forth in the following table. General corporate expenses,
property'ommon to both segments and depreciation of such
common property have been allocated to the segments in ac-
cordance with practice established for regulatory purposes.
Identifiable assets include net utility plant, materials and
supplies, deferred finance charges, deferred recoverable
energy costs and certain other deferred debits. Corporate as-
sets consist of other property and investments, cash, accounts
receivable, prepayments, unamortized debt expense and other
deferred debits,

Short-term debt:
Commercial paper......
Notes payable ...........
Bankers acceptances ...

Weighted average interest rate (a) ..
$ 35,671

11 40o/o
$ 108,000

9.28o/o

$ — $ 81,000
28,926

6,745 27,000

$ 411,887 $ 366,142 $ 457,109Total ....

Construction oxponditures
(including nuclear fuel):
Electric ................. $ 356,785 $ 316,798 $ 417,887
Gas ..................... 55,102 49.344 39.222

For ear ended December 31:

Dailyaverage outstaqding .......... $ 80,583 $ 46,254
Monthlyweighted average

interest rate(e) ............... ~ . 9.62/o 7.58o/o
Maximum amount outstandin ..... $249,300 $173,100

(a) Excluding fees.

Identifiable assets:
Electric ........
Gas ............

... $6,229,107 $5,910,897 $5,626,117
581,900 539.309 491,315

Total.................. 6,81 1,007 6,450,206 6,117,432
Cor orate assets ......... 764,086 625.835 676,666

Total assets............ $7,575,093 $7,076.041 $6,794,098
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Percentage
owner-
ship

Roseton Steam
Station Units
No. 1

and 2(a) ...,..
Oswego Steam

Station Unit
No.6(b) ......

Nine Mile Point
Nuclear
Station Unit
No.2(c) .. ~...

25 $ 83,993 $33,749 $ 128

76 $ 264,342 $71,904 $ 3,056

41 $ 1,478,255 $ 62,056 $ 7,623

NOTE 6. Jointly-Owned Generating Facilities
The following table reflects the Company's share of jointly-

owned generating facilities at December 31, 1989. The Com-
pany is required to provide its respective share of financing for
any additions to the facilities, Power output and related ex-
penses are shared based on proportionate ownership. The
Company's share of expenses associated with these facilities is
included in the appropriate operating expenses in the Consoli-
dated Statements of Income.

ln thousands ofdollars
Construction

Utility Accumulated work in
plant depreciation progress

(a) The remaining ownership interests are Centra( Hudson Gas
and Electric Corporation, the operator of the plant "(35%)
and Consolidated Edison Company of New York, Inc.
(40%). Central Hudson Gas and Electric Corporation has
agreed to acquire the Company's 25% interest in the plant
in len equal installments of 2.5% (30 mw) starting on De-
cember 31, 1994 and on each December 31 thereafter. The
agreement is subject to PSC approval.

(b) The Company is the operator. The remaining ownership
interest is Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation (24%),
Output of Oswego Unit No. 6, which has a capability of
850,000 kw., is shared in the same proportions as the co-
tenants'espective ownership interests.

(c) The Company is the operator. The remaining ownership
interests are Long Island Lighting Company (18%), New
York Slate Electric and Gas Corporation (18%), Rochester
Gas and Electric Corporation (14%), and Central Hudson
Gas and Electric Corporation (9%). Output of Unit 2, which
has a capability of 1,084,000 kw., is shared in the same
proportions as the cotenants'espective ownership
interests.

NOTE 7. Capitalization
CAPITALSTOCK

The Company is authorized to issue 150,000,000 shares of common stock, $1 par value; 3,400,000 shares of preferred stock,
$100 par value; 19,600,000 shares of preferred stock, $25 par value; and 4,000,000 shares of preference stock, $25 par value. The
table below summarizes changes in the capital stock issued and outstanding and the related capital accounts for 1987, 1988 and
1989:

Preferred Stock

Common Stock
$ 1 ar value

Shares Amount*

$ 100 arvalue
Non-

Redeem- Redeem-
Shares able'ble Shares

$25 arvalue Capital Stock
Non- Premium and

Redeem- Redeem- Expenseable'ble'Nel)
Balance January 1,1987: 127,140,994
Sales In 1987 .......,.....
Issued to stock purchase

plans in 1987 ............ 1,812,430
Redemptions .............
Foreign currency
translation ad ustment ...

$127,141 3,260,000 $210,000 $116,00''e) 14,874,000
1,000,000

1IS]2
(333,000) — (33,300) (1,163,199)

$80,000 $291,850)a) $1,522,499
25,000 (423)

22,442
(29,080) 577

3,731

(283 000) — (28i300) (1i147i199) — (28i680)

Balance December 31,1987: 128,953,424 128,953 2,927,000 210,000 82,700I'a) 14,710,801 80,000 287,770(a) 1,548,826
Issued to stock purchase

plans in 19SS ..........., 6,679,672 6,680 83,937

Redemptions ............. 672

Foreign currency
translation adjustment ... 7,158

Balance December 31,1988: 135,633,096 135,633 2,644,000 210,000
Issued to stock purchase
plans in 1989 ........., .. 466,558 467

Redemptions ........,.... (58,000)
Foreign currency
translation ad ustment....

54,40Q'e) 13,563,602 80,000 259,090(a) 1,640,593

5,375
(5,800) (887,199) — (22,180) 137

3,180

Balance December 31,1989: 136,099.654 $136,100 2.586.000 $210,000 $48,600re) 12,676,403 $80,000 $236,919'a) $1,649,285

In thousands oldollars,
(a) Includes sinking fund requirements due within one year
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V

NON-REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK (Optionally Redeemable)

The Company has certain issues of preferred stock which provide for optional redemption as follows:

At December 31,

Redemption price per share
(Before adding accumulated dividends)

In thousands of dollars Eventual
1989 1988 1987 December 31, 1989 minimum-

Preferred $100 par value:
3.40'/o Series; 200,000 shares,.........
3.60'/o Series; 350,000 shares..........
3.90'/o Series; 240,000 shares..........
4.10'/o Series; 210,000 shares........, .
4.85/o Series; 250,000 shares..........
5.25/o Series; 200,000 shares . „.......
6.10/o Series; 250,000 shares.....,....
7.72'/o Series; 490,000 shares..........

Preferred $25 par value:
Adjustable Rate Series A;

1,200,000shares .................. ~

Adjustable Rate Series C;
2,000,000shares ...,...............

$ 20,000
35,000
24,000
21,000
25,000
201000
25,000
40,000

30,000

50,000

S 20,000
35,009
24,000
21,000
25,000
20,000
25,000
40,000

S 20,000
35,000
24,000
21,090
25,000
20,000
25,000

, 40,000

30,000 30,000

50,000 50,000

$103.50
104.85
106.00
102.00
102,00
102.00
101.00
103.51

25.75

(a)

$103.50
104.85
106.00
102.00
102.00
102.00
101.00
102.36

25.00

25.00

(a) Not redeemable until 1990.

$290,000 $290,000 $290,000

MANDATORILYREDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK

The Company has certain issues of preferred stock which provide for mandatory and optional redemption
as follows:

Redemption price per share
(Before adding accumulated dividends)

In thousands of dollars EventualAt December 31 ~
'989 1988 1987 December 31, 1989 minimum

Preferred $100 par value:
7.45'/o Series; 366,000, 384,000 and 402,000 shares ......

10.13/o Series; none and 225,000 shares,............. ~ ..
10.60/o Series; 120,090, 160,000 and 200,000 shares .....

Preferred $25 par value:
8.375/o Series; 900,000, 1,000,000

and 1,100,000 shares
8.70/o Series; 1,000,000 shares
8.75/o Series; 3,000,000 shares
9.75/oSeries;540,000, 606,000and672,000 shares ......

10.13'/o Series; none and 900,000 shareS .................
10.75/o Series; 960,000 and 1,600,000 shares ...,.........
12 25'/o Series; 570 820, 613 880 and 656 940 shares,.....
12.50o/o Series; 505,583, 543,722 and 581,861 shares ......
Ad'ustable Rate Series B; 2,000,000shares................

Less sinking fund redemption requirements

S 36,600

12,000

221500
25,000
75,000
13,500

24,000
14,270
12,640
50,000

285,510
17,980

$ 38,400

16,000

25,000
25,000
75,000
15,150

40,000
15,347
13,593
50.000

313,490
17,980

$ 40,200
22,500
20,000

27,500
25,000
75,000
16,800
22,500
40,000
'l6,423
14,547
50,000

370,470
14,980

25.88
(a)
(a)
25.78 "

25.90
(~)
(>)
25.75

25.00
25.09
25.00
25.00

25.00
25.00
25.00
25.00

$103.61 $100.00

107.95 'i02.65

(a) Not redeemable until 1992.
(b) Not redeemable until 1991.

$267,530 $295,510 - $355,490

These series require mandatory sinking funds for annual redemption and provide optional sinking funds through which ~he
Company may redeem, at par, a like amount of additional shares (limited to 120,000 shares of the 7.45'/o series and 300,000 shares
of the 9.75'!o series). The option to redeem additional amounts is not cumulative.
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The Company's five-year mandatory sinking fund redemption requirements for preferred stock are as follows:

In thousands ofdollars
No. ol shares Commencing 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994

Preferred $100 par value:
7.45% Series ....... ~...,.

10.9P/o Series ... „........
Preferred $25 par value:

8.375%Series ......,. ~...
8.7IP/o Series .........,...
8.75% Series .. ~,..... ~ ..,
9.75% Series .....,.......

10.75%Series ....'.........
12.25% Series ... ~.... ~ .. ~ ~

12.50'/o Series "............
Adjustable Rate Series B ...

18,000
20,000

100,000
200,000
600,000

66,000
320,000

43,060
38,139
50,000

6/30/77
3/31/80

4/1/83
6/30/93

12/31/92
10/1/80
6/30/89
3/31/87
3/31/87
9/30/93

$ 1,800
2,000

2,500

1,650
8,000
1,077

953

$ 1,800
2,000

2,500

1,650
8,000
1,077

953

$ 1,800
2,000

2,500

15,000
1„650
8,000(a)
1,077

953

$ 1,800
2,000

2,500
5,000

15,000
1,650

1,077
953

1,250

$ 1,800
2,000

2,500
5,000

15,000
1,650

1,077
„953

1,250

(a) Redemption completed in 1992.

$17,980 $17,980 $32,980 $31,230 $31,230

LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt and long-term debt due within one year consisted of the following:

In thousands ofdollars
At December 31, 1989 1988

In thousands ofdollars
At December 31, 1989 1988

First mortgage bonds:
12% Series due March 1, 1989..............

'Vs% Series due October 1, 1989 '..........
474% Series due April 1, 1990,............
4Vs%Series due November1,1991 ........

12.73% Series due February1, 1992.........
13.06% Series due February 1, 1992....,, .

12.73'/o Series due February 20, 1992........
12 68k Series due February 28, 1992........
11% Series due May 1, 1993 ................

8~/a%Series due August1,1994 ........, ..
4r>t>% Series due December 1, 1994 ........
9Vs% Series due October 1, 1996 ..........
Srls% Series due November 1, 1996 ........
9%%Seriesdue July1,1997 ...,..........
6V4% Series due August 1, 1997 ....,......
9~/s% Series due May 1, 1S98 ..............
6Vs% Series due August 1, 1998 ...........

10'%eries due February 1, 1999 ..........
103/s% Series due April1,1999.............,
9'/s%Seriesdue December1,1999 ........

12.95% Series due October 1, 2000 .........
T$% Series due February 1, 2001 ..........
9)/4% Series due October 1, 2001 .'....,....
7s/s% Series due February 1, 2002...,......
774% Series due August 1, 2002 ...........
8>/4% Series due December 1, 2003 . ~......
SVs% Series due December 1 ~ 2003 ........
9 95% Series due September 1, 2004.......

10.20% Series due March 1>2005 ...........
8.35% Series due August 1, 2007 . ~ ~ . ~ . ~ ~ ~ ~

8'>% Series due December 1, 2007 ........

$ — $

50,000
40,000
20,000
50,000
10,000
20,000
50,000

150,000
40,000

100,000
45,000

100,000
40,000

200,000
60,000

100,000
100,000

75,000
42,669
65,000

100,000
80,000
80,000
80,000
41,177
75,000
29,000
66,640
36,000

20,000
13,000
50,000
40,000
20,000
50,000
10,000
20,000
50,000

150,000
40,000

100,000
4S,OOO

100,000
40,000

200,000
60,000

75,000
48,002
65,000

80,000
80,000
80,000
44,118
80,000
30,478
66,640
38,000

11)/4% Series due July 1, 2014 .............,
11%%SeriesdueOctober1,2014 ....,.....
1IP/o Series due Juno 1, 2016 ..........."....
1(P/o Series due November1, 2016 .........,

Br/s% Series due November 1, 2025,.........
Total First Mortgage Bonds .... „........ „
Promissory notes:''/s Series A due June1,2004..............

'Adjustable Rate Series due
July 1, 2015 .
December 1, 2023
December 1, 2025
December 1, 2026 .

March 1, 2027,
July1, 2027,.

I

Unsecured notes payable:
Medium Term Notes, Various rates,

due 1989-2004
Swiss Franc Bonds due December 1S, 1995 ..
15.02/o Unsecured Notes due 1990,......,.
Notes, Interest Rate Exchange Agreement ...
Revolving credit agreemont,

Oswego Facilities Trust .............,...
Other .

Unamortized premium (discount) ..........

75,690
40,015

150,000
100,000
75,0 00

75,690
40,015

150,000
100,000
75,000

2,386)191 2,135,943

46,600 46,600

100,000
69,800
75,000

,

50,000
25>760
93,200

100,000
69,800
75,000
50,000
25,760
93,200

251,100 200,000
50)000 50,000
50 000 50 000
50,000 75,000

63,700
135>512

(1,027)

135,909

893

TOTALLONG-TERM DEBT .......,........ 3,445>836 3,106,319
Lesslon -term debtduewithln one ear .... 196,508 110,571

$3,249,328 $2,995,748

Tax-exempt pollution control related issues
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Several series of First Mortgage Bonds and Notes were is-
. sued to secure a like amount of tax-exempt revenue bonds and

notes issued by the New York State Energy Research
and Development Authority (NYSERDA).

Approximately'414,000,000of such notes bear interest at a daily adjustable
interest rate (with a Company option to convert to a fixed inter-
est rate which would jequire the Company to issue First
Mortgage Bonds to secure the debt) which averaged 5.88/o for
1989 and are supported by bank direct pay letters of credit.
Pursuant to agreements between NYSERDA and the Company,
proceeds from such issues were used for the purpose of
financing the construction of certain pollution control facilities
at the Company's generating facilities.

During 1988 and 1989, the Company issued $300 million of
unsecured medium term notes at various rates, The aggregate
maturities of these notes for the five years subsequent to De-
cember 31, 1989, are $29.0 million, $77.9 million, $56.5 million,
$32.2 million and $10.5 million, respectively.

Notes'Payable include a ten-year Swiss franc bond issue
equivalent to $50,000,000 in U.S. funds. Simultaneousiy with
the sale of these bonds, the Company entered into a currency
exchange agreement to fullyhedge against currency exchange
rate fluctuations.

The Company has Interest Rate Exchange Agreements'ex-
tending into 1991 for $75,000,000. The agreements require the

'ompany to make fixed rate payments which, calculated on a
semi-annual bond basis, are equivalent to 7.53% and, in ex-

change, receive a LIBOR based floating rate payment from a
'ank.The Company generally uses its own commercial paper

notes as the source of funding. The related interest expense is
recorded on a net basis. Such Interest Rate Exchange
Agreements include a $25,000,000 agreement held by the Os-
wego Facilities Trust (Trust), The Trust temporarily discon-
tinued issuing commercial paper in July 1988 and the interest
rate exchange agreement was transferred to the Company. In
August 1989, the Trust resumed issuing commercial paper and
the Interest rate exchange agreement was transferred back to
the Trust.

The arrangements with the Trust provide financing for, the
construction of a new energy management system. The Trust
has a $75,000,000 Direct Pay Letter of Credit Facility and Re-
volving Credit Agreement, $25,000,000 of which is subject to an
Interest Rate Exchange Agreement and is used to support its
commercial paper obligations. All such obligations are se-
cured by'ertairi assets held by the Trust. Tpe Company is
required to purchase, or otherwise arrange for, the disposition
of the Trust'assets upon the termination of the Trust. The Letter
of Credit Facility and Revolving Credit Agreement of the Trust
require payment of fees which are based upon the amount of,
commercial paper outstanding.

Other long-term debt in 1989 consists of obligations under
capital leases of $59,296,000 (See Note 12) and a liabilityto the
U.S. Department of Energy for nuclear fuel disposal of
$76,216,000. (See PJote 10. "Nuclear Fuel Disposal Cost" ).

Certain of the Company's debt securities provide fora mandatory sinking fund for annual redemption. The Company's five-year
mandatory sinking fund redemption requirements are as follows:

Principal
Amount Commencing 1990

'n thousands ofdollars
1991 1992 1993

First Mortgage Bonds:
10.20% Series due March 1, 2005..... „

8.35% Series due August 1, 2007:.....
8%% Series due December 1,2007 ....
9.95% Series due September 1, 2004 ..

12.95/o Series due October 1, 2000 .....,
9%% Series due December 1, 2003,...

Promissory Notes:
8%SeriesAdue June1 ~ 2004 .........

$1,500
750

„2,000
5,000
5„333
2,941

500

3/1/78
8/1/82

12/1/83
9/1/85

10/1/86
12/1/87

6/1/90

$ 1,500
(a)

2,000
5,000
5,333
2,941

$ 1)500
(a)

2,000
5,000
5,333
21941

$ 1>500
(a)

2,000
5,000
5,333
2,941

$ 1,500
640(a)

2,000
5,000 "

5,333
2,941

$ 1,500
750

2,000
5,000
5,333
2,941

$17,274 $17,274 " $17,374 $18,014 $18,224

(a) Requirements, or a portion thereof, have been met by advance purchases.

Additionally, certain other series of mortgage bonds provide for a debt retirement fund whereby payment requirements may be
met, in lieu of cash, by the certification of additional property, the waiver of the issuance of additional bonds or the retirement of
outstanding bonds. The 1989 requirements for these series were satisfied by the certification of additional property. The Com-

, pany anticipates that the 1990 requirements for these series will be satisfied by other than payment in cash. Total annual debt
retirement fund requirements for these series, based upon mortgage bonds outstanding at December 31, 1989, are $6,050„000.

'I

e
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NOTE 8. Pension and Other Retirement Plans
The Company and certain of its subsidiaries have non-

contributory, defined-benefit pension plans covering substan-
tiallyall their employees. Benefits are based on the employee's
years of service and compensation level. The pension cost was
$18.8 million for 1989, $26.0 million for 1988 and $30.2 million
for 1987 (of which $5.0 million for 1989, $7.8 million for 1988
and $11.4 million for 1987 was related to construction labor
and, accordingly, was charged to construction projects). The
Company's general policy is to fund the pension costs accrued
with consideration given to the maximum amount that can be
deducted for Federal income tax purposes. Contributions are
intended to provide not only for benefits attributed to service to
date but also for those expected to be earned in the future.

Net pension cost for 1989 and 1988 included the following
components:

In thousands of dollars

At December 31, 1989 1988

Service cost-benefits earned during
the period ......,........ $ 21,600 $ 22,900

Interest cost on projected benefit obligation... 42,200 56,300
Return on Plan assets........,,... (47,800) (56,000)
Amortization of net obli ation .........,....,. 2,800 2,800

Net ension cost... $ 18,800 $ 26,000

The following table sets forth the plan's funded status and
amounts recognized in the Company's Consolidated Balance
Sheets:

Projected benefits obligation for
service rendered to date ....,....., ..

Plan assets at fair value, consisting
primarily of listed stocks, bonds,

, other fixed income obligations and
insurance contracts

Plan assets fn excess of projected
benefit obligations,

Unrecognized net obligation at
January 1, 1987 being recognized over
approximately 19 years .........,.........

Unrecognized net gain from past
experience difterent from that assumed
and effects of changes In assumptions ~...

Gain from settlement of pension
obligations.

Prior service cost not yet recognized
ln net eriodic onsion cost .... ~....,....

457,456 744,820

600,673 811,094

143>217 66,274

43,561 46,354

(271837) (119,040)

(82,752)

34D 21D

Prepaid (accrued) pension costs included In
other c rrent assets and liabilities ......... $ 76,529 $ 6.20

In thousands of dollars

at December 31, 1989 1988

Actuarial present value of accumulated
benefit obligations:

Vested benefits ....,........... $250,266 $516,014
Non-vested benefits ................., .. 43,338 34,401

Accumulated benefit obligations .......... 293,604 550,415
Additional amounts related to

projected a increases ................ 163,852 194,405

NOTE 9. Federal and Foreign Income Taxes
Income Tax Reform: The Tax Reform Act of 1986 lowered the
statutory corporate Federal income tax rate from 46'/o to 34%
effective July 1, 1987. The deferred Federal income taxes below
relating to book/tax timing differences have been provided at
34% in 1989 and 1988 and the blended statutory rate of approx-
imately 40% for 1987.

Components of United States and foreign income before in-
come taxes:

In thousands ofdollars
1989 1988 1987

United States ......,.......... $234,527 $322,814 $180,213
Foreign, ..... 24,704 16,48S 28,S94
Consolidatin eliminations .... (18,115) 9.621 23.571

Income before Income taxes
and the cumulative effect of
the accounting change ln
1987 $241,116 $329.678 $185.236

In 1989 and 1988, the discount rate and rate of increase in
future compensation levels used'in determining the actuarial
present value of the projected benefit obligations were 8.00%
and 4.50/o (plus merit increases) and 8.25% and 4.50/o (plus
merit increases), respectively. The expected long-term rate of
return on plan assets was 9.00% in 1989 and 8.75/o in 1988.

Included as an item of income is a portion of a pension set-
tlernent gain realized from the purchase of a group annuity
relating to obligations to existing retirees. The total gain from
the pension settlement of approximately $ 83 million, which
would generally be recognized Immediately in earnings, was
initiallydeferred pending future regulatory consideration. Pur-

'uant to the 1989 Agreement, the Company began amortizing
the pension settlement gain over an eighteen year period be-
ginning in April 1989.

In addition to providing pension benefits, the Company and
its subsidiaries provide certain health care and life insurance
benefits for active and retired employees and dependents.
Under current policies, substantially all of the Company's
employees may be eligible for continuation of some of these
benefits upon normal or early retirement. These benefits are
provided through insurance companies whose charges and
premiums are based on the claims paid during the year. The
cost of providing these benefits to retired employees
amounted to approximately $ 11.8 million for 1989, $12.6 mil-
lion for 1988, and $8.8 million for 1987,

In 1989, the FASB issued an Exposure Draft entitled
"Employers'ccounting for Postretirement Benefits Other
Than Pensions". This proposed statement would require,
among other things, accrual accounting by employers for post-
retirement benefits other than pensions reflecting currently
earned benefits and disclosure of the total vested post retire- "

ment liability.The Company currently accounts for such costs
on a cash basis for both active and retired employees. This

- proposed change would become effective in 1992. The effect
on the Company's financial condition of the adoption of this
proposed statement is dependent upon the regulatory treat-
ment afforded accrued post retirement costs.
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Following is a summary of the components of Federal and foreign'incotne tax and a reconciliation between the amount of
Federal income tax expense reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income and the computed amount at the statutory tax
rate:

Summary Analysisr ln thousands ofdollars
1989 1988 1987

Components of Federal and foreign Income taxes:
Current tax expense: Federal,.......,.........,.....

Forei n ....
$ 24,627

4,728
$ 60,173

998
$ 39,574

4,606
29,355 61,171 44,180

Deferred tax expense: Federal. 70,851, 66,996 146,886
Forei n . 4,897 6,284 4,406

75,748 73,280 151,292
Income taxes included in Operating Expenses
Current Federal tax credits associated with disallowed plant depreciation.......,
Deferred Federal income tax expense (credits) included In Other Income and
Deductions .

105,103
(241755)

9,985

134,451
(29,068)

15,481

195,472
(19,070)

48,95
Total . $ 90,333 $120,864 $127,450

Components of deferred Federal Income taxes(Note 1)r
Depreciation
Investment tax credit,............. „... „
Alternative minimum tax
Benefit associated with disallowed plant costs.
Construction overheads
Recoverable energy and purchased gas costs ..
Unbilled revenues...........,.
Reacquisition of bonds
Deferred operating expenses.
Other .

~ ~

$ 901920
(9,116)

(17,363)

1,386
251987
(6,686)
(1,331)
4,698
2,762)

$116,397
(392)

(33,786)

(2,826)
8,664
4,912

(2,463)

1,74

$101,206
49,303

(50,400)
14,492
(3,858)

(15,181)
3,299

3,479
Deferred Federal income taxes net $ 85,733 $ 88,761 $102,340

Reconciliation between Federal and foreign Income taxes and the tax computed
at prevailing U.S. statutory rate on Income before Income taxes:

Com uted tax
Reduction (increase) attributable to flow-through ot certain tax adjustments:

Depreciation'.
Allowance tor funds used during construction
Taxes, pensions and employee benefits capitalized foraccounting purposes ...
Real estate taxes on an assessment date basis ...

Deferred investment tax credit amortization ...,.
Tax adjustments associated with disallowed plant costs
Other . . .... ...... ............

Federal and forel n income taxes ....

$ 81,979

(30,645)
7)130

(273)
1,934
9,381

4,119
(8,354)

$ 90,333

$112,091

(18,959)
3,747
3,929
2,537

, 10,092

10,119
8,77

$ 120,864

$ 74,002

(24,160)
12,336

(798)
859

7,328
(56,826)

7,813
53,44

$127,450

NOTE10. Nuclear Operations
The Company is the owner and operator of Unit 1 and the

operator and a 41% co-owner of Unit 2 (See Note 6). Con-
tingencies involving the Company's ownership of these
facilities are discussed below.

NRC Assessment of Nine Mile Point Station Performance: In
December 1988, Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) senior
managers conducted their semi-annual review of the perforrn-
ance of nuclear power plants licensed by the NRC. As a result
of this review, the Company was advised that the Nine Mile
Point Station (Units 1 ar)d 2) was being categorized as requir-
ing close monitoring by the NRC, a conclusion that was sub-
sequently supported at a meeting of the NRC Commissioners
on December 21, 1988. The conclusion was based on the
NRC's assessment of Unit 2's overall performance in certain

, areas during the first year of its operation and a June 1988
assessment of the 'overall performance of Unit 1. Further, the
Staft of the NRC (the NRC Staff) observed that increased licen-
see and NRC attention is needed to ensure that performance

improvement at the Nine Mile Point Station is achieved. The
Nine Mile Point Station continues to be categorized as requir-
ing close monitoring by the NRC.

unit 1 OUtage; Unit 1 was taken out of service in December
1987 tor repairs to its feedwater system. During these repairs.
the Company decided to proceed from this outage into refuel-
ing of Unit 1, an activity that was previously scheduled to begin
in March 1988. The Unit 1 outage was further extended to
complete required in-service inspections. Inspections are con-
tinuing. *

During July 1988, the Company received a letter from the
NRC Staff stating that Unit 1 was identified as having
weaknesses'that warrant increased NRC attention and require
close monitoring. Citing a March 1988 civil penalty relating to
in-service inspections, an April 1988 Systematic Appraisal ot
Licensee Performance (SALP) review and operator training
and attitude conce'ms, the NRC Staff identified a trend that, in
their view, is "ofsigniticant concern."

The NRC held a public meeting in July 1988 and~ among
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other things, reviewed the performance of operating nuclear
power plants licensed by the NRC. At this meeting, the NRC
Staff indicated that Unit 1 would not be allowed to restart until
such time as a comprehensive plan addressing and rectifying
the NRC Staff's concerns is developed and approval for restart
is received from the NRC Staff.

The Company developed a comprehensive plan to correct
the root causes of the concerns raised by the NRG Staff and
submitted a final version of this Restart Action Plan tb the NRC
Region I Administrator on July 11, 1989. NRC approval of the
Restart Action Plan was received on September 29, 1989.

During September 1989, the Company notified the NRC of its
readiness to restart Unit 1 upon completion of certain activities
In the Restart Action Plan. Beginning on October 4, 1989, an
NRC inspection team evaluated the Company's readiness to
restart Unit 1. The results of the inspection, which were re-
leased in a report to the Company on November 8, 1989, were
that overall there were no fundamental flaws in the irnplemen-
tation of the Company's Restart Action Plan. The report did
note, however, two areas where implementation was weak, but
improving: problem solving and standards of performance/
self-assessment. The Company believes that, subject to
improving on the weaknesses noted in the report, restart of
Unit 1 willnot be aftected by the results of this inspection. The
Company has responded to the report, agreeing that there
were no fundamental flaws in the Restart Action Plan, and that
specific noted weaknesses willbe addressed.

In late December 19S9, the Company began preparations to
load fuel into Unit 1's reactor. Fuel load was completed on
January I8, 1990, representing the achievement of a significant
milestone in the Company's efforts to return Unit 1 to service.
However, additional work is required before the Company will
be prepared to restart Unit 1,

Restart of Unit 1 is conditioned upon the NRC Region I Ad-
ministrator's concurrence that Unit 1 and management are
ready to restart. Based upon an assessment by the Company of
the tasks to be completed prior to restart of Unit 1, including

~ completion of physical work necessary to permit restart and
NRC concurrence as to the Company's readiness to restart, the
Company anticipates that Unit 1 will not be ready to restart
prior to the second quarter of 1990. The Company anticipates a
six to eight week power ascension program upon restart, how-
ever the Company cannot predict whether delays will occur
due to potential emergent work arising as a result of dis-
coveries during power ascension. The Company can provide
no assurance that the current scope of effort to be completed
prior to restart will not be expanded by future events of which
the Company is not currently aware. Also, the Company cannot
predict with assurance the time period or results of the NRC
review which is required to permit restart of Unit 1.

PSC investigation of the Unit 1 Outage: In May t988, the Attor-
ney General of the State of New York filed a petition with the
PSC requesting that the PSC, 1) order the Company to cease
recovery of replacement power costs incurred by the Company
as a result of the Unit 1 outage discussed above, 2) institute a
proceeding to determine whether the Company should retund
replacement power costs already collected and 3) remove Unit
1 from the Company's rate base until Unit 1 returns to service.
In an order issued in September 1988, the PSC instituted a
proceeding, based upon its authority to order the refund of any
imprudently incurred costs, to investigate the Unit 1 outage.
The further relief sought by the Attorney General was denied
subject to the possibility of being reconsidered at a later date.

The Company, the Staft ot the PSC (PSC Staff), the Attorney
General, the New York State Consumer Protection Board and
Multiple Intervenors reached an interim relief agreement (the

"Interim Relief Agreement" ), which was approved by the PSC
in an Order issued January 26, 1989. The Interim Relief Agree-
ment provided that the Company, commencing with the fuel
cost month of January 1989 until the earlier of restart of Unit 1

or June 30, 1989, would temporarily suspend collection from
ratepayers of $225 thousand per day in replacement power
costs through the fuel adjustment clause mechanism. This re-
duced the Company's cash flow during the term of the agree-
ment by approximately $40.7 million.

The Interim Relief Agreement obviated the need for the
Company to litigate at that time the question of the appropri-
ateness of interim rate relief and thus permited continued con-
centration of the Company's resources on the effort to restart
Unit 1. The Interim Relief Agreement did not resolve any issues
of responsibility which may arise during the conduct of the
prudence investigation and was not an admission of impru-
dence by the Company.

The Company deferred, for regulatory purposes only, re-
placernent power cost revenues associated with the Interim
Relief Agreement for future recoVery pending the results of the
PSC's prudence investigation. However, the degree of uncer-
tainty associated with the ultimate outcome of the PSC's pru-
dence investigation precluded the accrual of these revenues
for financial reporting purposes, which reduced earnings per
share during 1989 by approximately $,20.

Unit 1 did not return to service by June 30, 1989 and the
Interim Relief Agreement expired by its terms, although the
parties to the Interim Relief Agreement were free to seek an
extension of interim relief. Pursuant to the 1989 Agreement,
(See Note 11. Rates and Regulatory Matters-1989 Agreement)
the parties thereto, and the PSC, agree'd to refrain from filing
any request for cessation of the flow-through to customers of
Unit 1 replacement power costs so long as the 1989 Agreement
is in effect; however, such costs collected will remain subject
to the Unit 1 outage prud'ence investigation.

With the expiration of the Interim Relief Agreement, the
Company has begun collecting from customers the replace-
ment power costs incurred after June 30, 1989. Based upon
management's current assessment, the Company has deferred
for recovery through the fuel adjustment clause mechanism
the replacement power costs associated with the fuel cost
months of July through December 1989. The Company's ability
to record future replacement power costs recovered through
the fuel adjustment clause mechanism as revenues for finan-
cial reporting purposes is dependent upon an ongoing evalua-
tion by management of the then current facts and cir-
cumstances surrounding the investigation of the Unit 1 outage.
Inability to record these, revenues could impact the Company's
attainment of the 1.60 times interest coverage floor and the
target coverages established in the 1989 Agreement. (See Note
11. Rates and Regulatory Matters-1989 Agreement).

ln addition to amounts absorbed pursuant to the Interim Re-
liefAgreement, the Company has also absorbed its share of the
replacement power costs as provided for in the fuel adjustment
clause mechanism, as well as the incremental operating ex-
penses occasioned by the outage which were not provided for
in rates. From the beginning of the outage, through December
31, 19S9, replacement power costs have averaged approxi-
mately $332,000 per day, as determined using a New York
Power Pool/Canadian supplier average cost per KWH.

Based upon assumptions utilized in determining the amount
of replacement power costs occasioned by the Unit 1 outage,
the Company has estimated that, through December 31, 1989,

't

has collected from ratepayers up to $154 millionof increased
fuel adjustment clause revenues. These revenues are subject
to full or partial retund if the Company is found to have acted
imprudently in a way which caused or extended the outage.
During the period of the outage, through December 31, 1989,
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the Company has estimated that it has absorbed approximately
$58 millionof replacement power costs, including amounts not
collected pursuant to the Interim Relief Agreement, and ap-
proximately $97 million (approximately $69 million in 1989) of
incremental Unit 1 operating and maintenance costs oc-
casioned by the outage which are in excess of amounts pro-
vided for in the rate setting process. The precise amount of
replacement power costs incurred for any given period is de-
pendent upon seasonal factors, relative demand and availa-
bilityof capacity, as well as assumptions utilized in estimating
replacement power costs incurred as occasioned by the out-
age.

The Company is unable to predict the results of the PSC's
prudence investigation, what sanctions may ultimately be im-
posed or the jmpact on the Company's financial condition,
results of operations or level of retained earnings which might
result if any such sanctions are imposed. AII formal actions in
the Unit 1 prudence proceeding have been held in abeyance
pending efforts to resolve a number of outstanding regulatory
matters. pursuant to the terms of the 1989 Agreement. (See
Note 11. Rates and Regulatory Matters —1989 Agreement.)

Clean-Up of Radwaste. Spill at Unit 1: In August 1989, an NRC
inspection team began an investigation of the circumstances
surrounding a 1981 spill of radioactive waste containers in a
storage facility at Unit 1. Management strongly believes that at
no time has the health and safety of the public or the Com-
pany's employees been endangered by the spill.

The NRC released a report to the Company on October 3,
1989 detailing the findings of the NRC inspection team. The
report indicated that while the NRC concurred with the Com-
pany's assessment that at no time has the health and safety of
the public or the Company's employees been endangered, the
Company may have committed two violations. The NRC has
not yet determined what sanctions, if any, may be imposed on
the Company, including a possible monetary fine. An enforce-
ment conference was held on October 30, 1989 and the Com-
pany is awaiting a decision from the NRC on the matter of
sanctions. The Company expects to begin clean-up of the spill
in early 1990.

Pursuant to the 1989 Agreement, the Company will absorb
the cost of the clean-up effort above amounts previously pro-
vided in rates. The Company does not expect that the cost of
the clean-up will have a material impact on its financial condi-
tion or results of operations or that the issue of the spill will
impact restart of Unit 1,

Unit 2 Mid-cycle Outage: On October 1„1988, Unit 2 began a
scheduled maintenance and inspection mid-cycle outage
which was expected to be completed by the end of December
1988. The outage was extended to effect repair and retest of a
main steam isolation valve, repair of generator retaining rings,
replacement of a generator coupling, and repair and retest of
six valves in the residual heat removal system. In February
1989, when activities required to allow the Unit to start up were
virtually complete, an issue of service water valve logic was
determined to prevent plant start up. This caused a forced out-
age from February 21, 1989 until April 5, 1989, when Unit 2
returned to service.

On March 12, 1989, the Attorney General filed a petition with
the PSC to expand the scope of the Unit 1 outage prudence
investigation to encompass the Unit 2 mid-cycle outage, which,
as discussed above, had a duration longer than originally
scheduled. In addition to asking for an Investigation into the
prudence of the management of the Unit 2 outage, the Attorney
General requested the PSC to consider several forms of interim
ratepayer relief, including deferral of the collection of some or

all of the replacement power costs, removal of some or all of
Unit 2 from the Company's and cotenants'ate bases, or a
combination of these actions. The Company's share of re-
placement power costs averaged approximately $ 135,000 per
day during the period of the outage.

Any formal action that may result from the Attorney Gener-
al's petition has been held in abeyance to be dealt with pur-
suant to the 1989 Agreement (See Note 11-Rates and Reg-
ulatory Matters-1989 Agreement). The issue of responsibility
for replacement power costs associated with operations from
April 5, 1988 through January 19, 1990 has been established
pursuant to an "agreement-in-principle" reached ln January
1990 amongst the Company, the cotenant Companies, the PSC
Staff and other intervenors. See Unit 2 Ratemaking and Cost
Settlement below.

In July 1989, fourteen of forty-eight licensed operators for
Unit 2 failed to pass required annual license requalification
testing. Any licensed operator who fails any portion of the test
is not permitted to work in the control room until that operator
is recertified. Unit 2 had a sufficient number of fully qualified
operators to continue operation of the plant. Subsequentiy, the
Company successfully retested with NRC participation all but
one of the failed operators in September. The Company has
also implemented an action plan to correct deficiencies in the
Unit 2 requalification training program that resulted In the un-
acceptably high examination failure rate.

institute of Nuclear Power Operations Evaluation: In November
1989 the Institute of Nuclear Power Operations (INPO), an in-
dustry sponsored oversight group, performed an evaluation of
Nine Mile Point Units 1 and 2. INPO reported deficiencies in
several key areas related to monitoring devices, operator per-
formance in the training simulator, and supervision of mainte-
nance practices. A number of these issues had been previously
noted and were being corrected or improved by the Company.
The Company is preparing its responses and a Corrective Ac-
tion Program with respect to the INPO findings. The Company
considers that the issues raised will not prevent restart of Unit
1 or continued operation of Unit 2.

Unit 2 Ratemaking and Cost Settlement: In September 1986,
the PSC,approved an agreement entitled "Specifications of
Terms and Conditions of Offer of Settlement" (Settlement) that
constitutes a complete disposition of a July 1985 PSC proceed-
ing established to investigate the prudence of costs incurred
for the construction of Unit 2. The Settlement contains, among
otherstipulations, key terms and conditions which provide that
the maximum amount of Unit 2's construction expenditures to
be included in the cotenants'ate bases would be $4.16 billion
and that each cotenant would waive any and all claims it may
have against any other cotenant concerning the design, en-
gineering or construction of Unit 2.

In connection with the Company's rate case decided in
March 1987, the PSC adopted their Staff's position on Settle-
ment implementation issues, which included, for ratesettlng
purposes, the recognition of tax benefits at primarily a 34/o
rate rather than preservation at a 46'/o rate, the recording of
deferred Federal income tax benefits in present value dollars,
exclusion from rate base of unrealized tax benefits, the disal-
lowance of certain plant-related costs, such as common
facilities, and a write-off of disallowed costs, net of Federal
income taxes, entirely against common equity. These require-
ments have had a detrimental impact on the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company. The Company be-
lieves that the implementation requirements ordered by the
PSC are contrary to the terms and intent of the Settlement arid,
in July 1987, the Company and cotenant companies appealed
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the PSC's decision to the State of New York Supreme Court-
Albany County.

Several intervening parties petitioned the PSC for rehearing
of its decision in connection with the Settlement and such
petitions were denied. In April 1987, the Consumer Protection
Board and the Attorney General of the State of New York filed a
lawsuit asking that the PSC decision be annulled'and that the
PSC be directed to conduct a full prudence investigation with
respect to the construction costs of Unit 2.

Although the Company is unable to predict the results of the
above actions, both actions would be terminated pursuant to
the "agreement-in-principle" reached among the Company,
the cotenant companies, the PSC Staff and other intervenors
discussed more fully below.

Pursuant to the1988 Joint Stipulation and Agreement (Stipu-
lation Agreement) entered into by the Company and other par-
ties and approved by the PSC, a separate, non-rate case pro-
ceeding was established to litigate remaining Unit 2 Settlement

. cap issues. In January 1990, the Company and cotenant com-
panies reached an "agreement-in-principle" with the PSC Staff
and other intervenors with respect to remaining Unit 2 Settle-
ment cap issues, Unit 2 operating prudence, allocation of net
litigation proceeds and prospective operating and mainte-
nance cost issues. The "agreement-in-principle", which is ul-
timately subject to approval by the PSC, would establish a final
fevel of allowed Unit 2 costs as well as estop the PSC Staff from
asserting that future capital additions are subject to the Sep-
tember 1986 Settlement. Further, alf proceeds from both set-
tled and active Unit 2 contractor litigation {as discussed in
"Unit 2 Contractor Litigation" below), after deductions from
such proceeds of the associated litigation costs, will be allo-
cated equally between shareholders and ratepayers. With re-
gard to Unit 2 operating prudence, the responsibility for and
value of replacement power costs associated with operations
from April 5, 1988 through January 19, 1990 has been estab-
lished. The Company is unable to predict whether the
"agreement-in-principle" will ultimately be approved by the
PSC. See "Unit2 Financial Accounting Recognition" below for
the financial effects of the 1986 Settlement and the
",agreement-in-principle."

Unit 2 Financial Accounting Recognition: In December 1986,
the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 90, "Regulated Enterprises-Accounting for Abandon-
ments and Disallowances of Plant Costs," an amendment of
FASB Statement No. 71 (SFAS No. 90). Among other things,

„SFAS No. 90 requires that when it becomes probable that part
of the cost of a generating facility will be disallowed for
ratemaking purposes and a reasonable estimate of the amount
of the disallowance can be made, the estimated amount of the
probable disallowance shall be deducted from the reported
cost of the plant and recognized as a loss.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 90 in 1987 and recognized
as a loss for financial accounting purposes the disallowance of
Unit 2 costs, including the cost of disallowed plant related
facilities, of approximately $ $ ,147 million, reduced to $833 mil-
lion ($6.54 per share) net of Federal income taxes. The ultimate
amount of the disallowance is dependent upon a final determi-
nation of the cost of Unit 2 which would be determined if the
"agreement-in-principle" is ultimately approved by the PSC. If
the "agreement-in-principle" is not approved by the PSC, the
Company is unable to predict whether further regulatory ac-
tions by the PSC with respect to the Company's investment in
Unit 2 willhave, in the aggregate, a material effect on its finan-
cial position or results of operations.
< The "agreement-jn-princfple" relating to rema(ning Unff 2
Settlement cap issues as discussed above, if ultimately ap-
proved by the PSC, would conclusively determine the amount

of disallowance associated with Unit 2 construction and re-
sponsibility for replacement power costs through January 19,
1990. Based upon the loss recognized in 1987 with the Com-
pany's adoption of SFAS 90 and the terms of the "agreement-
in-principle" Including responsibility relating to the Unit 2
operating prudence, the Company does not believe that the
recognition of the "agreement-in-principle" in its present form
will have a material effect on the Company's financial condi-
tion or results of operations.

Unit 2 Contractor Litigafion: In connection with problems en-
countered with Unit 2's original Main Steam Isolation Valves
(MSIV's), which caused a major defay in the completion of Unit
2, the Company and the cotenant companies have initiated a
lawsuit in New York State Supreme Court in Syracuse, New
York, seeking damages of approximately $500 million against
Gulf + Western, Inc., Crosby Valve and Gage Company and
Wickes Manufacturing Company, the companies having con-
tractual responsibility for the design and fabrication of Unit 2's
original MSIV's. The defendants have filed their answer which
dfsputes the Company's claim. The Company is unable to pre-
dict the ultimate outcome of the lawsuit.

On August 1, 1988, the Company and the cotenant com-
panies initiated a lawsuit in federal court in Syracuse, New
York, against three corporations involved in the construction
of Unit 2, Stone & Webster Engineering Corp. (the architect-
engineer and construction manager for Unit 2), ITT Fluid Prod-
ucts Corp. and ITT Fluid Technology Corp. (successor com-
panies to ITT Grinnell, a major piping contractor for Unit 2).
The lawsuit seeks damages for, among other things, breach of
contractual and professional obligations in their performance
under their contracts which resulted in delays and cost over-
runs. Stone & Webster Engineering Corporation has filed its
answer which disagrees with the Company's claim. Filing of
answers by the other two defendants has been delayed pend-
ing resolution of their motion to dismiss portions of the com-
plaint. The Company is unable to predict the ultimate outcome
of the lawsuit.

Unit 2 Operating Agreement: The Company and cotenant com-
panies executed an interim operating agreement in July 1989
which establishes the legal relationship between the Company
(as operator and 41 /o owner of Unit 2) and the other cotenants.
The agreement outlines the responsibilities and participation
of the cotenants in the overall management of Unit 2, while the
Company remains responsible for day-to-day operations.

The agreement, which has a term of eighteen months, also
provides for the investigation by the Company and cotenant
companies of alternative operating arrangements, including
the formation of an operating company.

P

Nuclear Plant DecommissIoning: Based on a 1989 study, the
cost of decommissioning Unit 1, which is expected to begin in
the year 2005, is estimated by the Company to be approxi-
mately $424 million at that time {$201 million in 1989 dollars).
The Company's 41/o share of the total cost to decommission
Unit 2, which is expected to begin in the year 2027, is estimated
by the Company to be approximately $514 million ($85 million
in 1989 dollars). These amounts reflect decreases in cost from
a 1986 Company study. The current annual allowances for re-
covery of decommissioning costs through rates as previously
authorized by the PSC, are based on*total estimated decom-
missioning costs over the life of Units 1 and 2 of $ 195 million
and $256 million (in future dollars), respectively. Through De-
cember 31, 1989, the Company has recovered approximately
$35.8 million of decommissioning costs in rates for both units.
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The Company continues to review the estimated requirements
for decommissioning and plans to seek rate adjustments when
appropriate. There. is no assurance that the decommissioning
allowance recovered in rates will ultimately aggregate a suffi-
cient amount to decommission the units. The Company
believes that decommissioning costs, if higher than currently
estimated, will ultimately be recovered in the rate process,
although no such assurance can be given.

'heNRC issued regulations in 1988 requiring owners of nu-
clear power plants to place costs associated with decommis-
sioning activities of contaminated portions of nuclear facilities
into an external trust at a substantially accelerated rate from
what has heretofore been required. Further, the NRC estab-
lished guidelines for determining minimum amounts that must
be available in the trust for these specified decommissioning
activities at the time of decommissioning. Based upon studies
applying the NRC guidelines, the Company has estimated that
the minimum requirements for Unit 1 and its share of Unit 2,
respectively, will be $305 million and $396 million in future
dollars. These amounts exceed the PSC allowed basis for cur-
rent cost recovery for total decommissioning costs associated
with the Units. As a result, the NRC regulations requiring an
external trust and establishing a minimum funding level, which
have not been considered in the rate setting environment,
could require the Company to increase its future capital re-
quirements. In an application filed on August 4, 1989 to in-
crease the Company's electric and gas base rates, the re-
quested allowances for recovery of decommissioning costs for
Units 1 and 2 were based upon the Company's revised decom-
missioning cost estimates and compliance with the NRC
guidelines. The Company can provide no assurance as to the
allowances which will ultimately be approved by the PSC. The
Company has until July 1990 to file a decommissioning report
for each Unit with the NRC which will include the proposed
funding plan. On March 1, 1989, the PSC issued an order re-
questing comments from utilities in connection with a generic
proceeding to examine the funding and taxation aspects of
accumulating nuclear decommissioning funds in an external
trust in response to the NRC regulations. The Company has
responded to the order and is awaiting final resolution of this
matter by the PSC.

Nuclear Liability insurance: Under the Price-Anderson Act as
amended (the Act), the public liability limit with respect to a
nuclear accident at a licensed reactor is approximately $7.1
billion, with the excess over commercially available insurance
to be funded by assessments of up to $63 million per licensed
facility for each nuclear incident, payable at a rate not to ex-
ceed $ 10 million per year, Such assessments are subject to
periodic inflation-indexing and to a 5'lo surcharge if funds
prove insufficient to pay claims. The Company's interest in
Units 1 and 2 could expose it to a potential loss, for each
accident, of $88.8 million through assessments of $ 14.1 million
per year in the event of a sufficiently serious nuclear accident
at its own or another U.S. commercial nuclear reactor. The
amendments also provide. among other things, that insurance
and indemnity willcover precautionary evacuations whether or
not a nuclear incident actually occurs.

Nuclear Fuel Disposal Cost: In January 1983, the Nuclear
Waste Policy Act of 1982 (Act) was passed into law. The Act
established a cost of $ .001 per kilowatt-hour of net generation
for current disposal of nuclear fuel and provides for a determi-
nation of the Company's liabilityto the DOE for the, disposal of
nuclear fuel irradiated prior to 1983. The Act also provides
three payment options for liquidating such liability and the
Company has elected to delay payment, with interest, until

1998, the year in which the Company had initially planned to
ship irradiated fuel to an approved DOE disposal facility. Prog-
ress in developing the DOE facility has been slow and it is
anticipated that the DOE facility will not be ready to accept
deliveries until 2010. The Company has several viable alterna-
tives under consideration that will provide additional storage
facilities, as necessary. Each alternative will likely require NRC
approval and may require other regulatory approvals. The
Company does not believe that the possible unavailability of'he DOE disposal facility in 1998 will inhibit operation of either
Unit.

NOTE 11. Rates and Regulatory Matters-1989 Agreement
On August 31, 1989, the Company, the staff of the New York

PSC, the New York Consumer Protection Board, the New York
Attorney General and Multiple Intervenors entered into the
1989 Agreement which establishes a framework within which
the Company's current and future financial condition can be
addressed while also providing a process for the ultimate res-
olution of numerous regulatory issues currently faced by the
Company. In an order issued on October 20, 1989, the PSC
approved the 1989 Agreement.

The 1989 Agreement addresses the Company's current fi-
nancial condition by permitting the Company to attain a
minimum monthly interest coverage level (without AFC) of 1.60
times through the end of 1990. This minimum coverage level
will be maintained by'he deferral of expenses subject to the
exclusion of extraordinary losses, ifany, that may occur

during'he

period. Through December 31, 1989, the Company, in order
to maintain the minimum coverage of 1.60 times, has deferred
approximately $13.8 million of operating expenses for future
recovery. In addition, during the last six months of 1990,
minimum cash coverages of 1.60 times (without AFC and non-
cash items) is intended to be maintained, if necessary, through
a surcharge to customers equivalent to net available transrnis-
sion and resale revenues. The cash surcharge under this pro-
vision of the 1989 Agreement willserve to reduce expense de-
ferrals otherwise permitted to achieve minimum coverages or
target coverages (as described below) under the 1989 Agree-
ment. The Company believes that the provisions of the 1989
Agreement, including the minimum cash coverage established,
may enable it to maintain the investment grade status of its
senior securities; however, no such assurance can be pro-
vided. (See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finan-
cial Condition and Results of Operations" as to the ratings of
the Company's securities and concerns as to achievement of
the target coverage and minimum cash coverage.)

In accordance with the 1989 Agreement, the Company is un-
dertaking a comprehensive self-assessment of the efficiency
and effectiveness of its organization and management. On De-
cember 15, 1989, the Company submitted to the PSC a work
plan describing the self-assessment approach, including a
schedule for its completion. The work plan includes a mid-
course milestone report to be completed on or before May 1,'990. The Company is required to submit, by no later than
November 15, 1990, a report summarizing the results of the
self-assessment and provide implementation plans addressing
the issues identified. With the acceptance of the work plan by
the PSC on December 29, 1989, the Company is now permitted
to defer up to $23 million of expenses for future recovery in an
effort to achieve an interest coverage fevel (without AFC) of
1.75 times for the first six months of 1990. If the Company
successfully completes the mid-course milestone included in
the work plan by May 1, 1990, the Company willbe permitted to ~

defer additional expenses for future recovery to provide an
interest coverage level of 1.85 times, also without AFC, for the



NIAGARA MOHAWK POWER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 39

last six months of 1990. However, there is no assurance that
the Company will achieve the indicated targeted coverage
levels since such levels are dependent on actual results of op-
erations and exclude extraordinary losses. Moreover, the other
parties to the 1989 Agreement have the right to contest before
the PSC whether the Company is reasonably carrying out the
self-assessment process, and thus whether the Compan)t has
successfully achieved the mid-course milestone.

As discussed in Note 10 under "PSC Investigation of the Unit
1 Outage", the Interjm Relief Agreement, by which the Com-
pany had suspended collection, effective January 1, 1989, of
$225,000 per day of replacement power costs associated with
the Unit 1 outage, expired by its terms on June 30, 1989. The
1989 Agreement provides that none of the parties to the 1S89
Agreement, including the PSC, will request cessation of the
flow-through to customers of Unit 1 replacement power costs
so long as the 1989 Agreement is in effect; however, such costs
collected will remain subject to the Unit 1 outage prudence
investigation.

On August 31, 1989, the Board of Directors determined to
omit the third quarter common stock dividend. Pursuant to the
1989 Agreement, ifthe Company resumes payment of common
stock dividends prior to Unit 1 being fully returned to service
(and achieving an average 75% capacity factor for a period of
thirty consecutive days) any other party to the 1989 Agreement
may withdraw therefrom and recommence litigation of the rate
case discussed in the next paragraph and the other regulatory
proceedings covered by the 1989 Agreement. The Company
can provide no assurance that when Unit 1 has returned to
service its Board of Directors will thereupon determine to re-
sume dividend payments. or as to the level at which they might
be resumed (See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations" for a discus-
sion of other considerations affecting reinstatement of the
common stock dividend).

jn August 1989, the Company filed an application with the
PSC requesting an increase in electric and gas rates which
would, if granted, produce additional revenues of $369.6 mil-
lion for'he year ending June 30, 1S91 (The application was
subsequently revised to $344.5 million in December 1989). The
PSC would have been required to decide the case by July 4,
1990; however, pursuant to the 1989 Agreement, the Company
extended the period within which a decision is required for this
I'ate request to March 1, 1991. In the event the PSC does not
establish permanent rates by January 1, 1991, temporary rates
will be put in effect as of that date, with permanent rates to
become effective no later than March 1, 1991. The parties to
the 1989 Agreement have agreed to negotiate a multi-year rate
plan, including incentive return mechanisms, with the objec-
tive of improving the Company's financial condition and the
predictability of future rates. Irrespective of these negotiations,
the'parties have agreed that any costs deferred pursuant to the
maintenance of the specified interest coverage targets dis-
cussed above or other costs deferred pursuant to the 1989
Agreement, in each case plus carrying charges, will be recov-
ered in rates over a period no longer than three years begin-
ning January 1, 1991, subject to an arlnual cap equivalent to
two percent of operating revenues (approximately $50 million
per year). The total amount of deferred costs to be recovered is
not limited. The Company anticipates that, based on current
forecasts, total costs deferred in order to maintain specified
interest coverage targets discussed above, net of available
cash surcharges equivalent to transmission and net resale
revenues, will not exceed $ 100 million including carrying
charges, with the preponderance of such deferrals expected to
opcur in 1990. The Company can provide no assurance as to
the outcome of the rate plan negotiations, the level and quality
of earrtjngs that may be ultimately authorized or the Com-

pany's ability to earn the authorized equity return established.
As discussed in Note 10 "Nuclear Operations" there are a

number of outstanding regulatory issues affecting the Com-
pany, including the Unit 1 prudence investigation, Unit 2 Set-
tlement cap issues, Unit 2 contractor litigation issues and Unit
2 operating prudence issues. A goal of the 1989 Agreement is
the ultimate resolution of these issues, either by negotiation or
by the PSC if negotiations are not conclusive. The PSC must
render a final decision no later than March 1, 1991. The Com-
pany can provide no assurance as to the outcome of the
negotiations or the PSC's approval thereof, or the impact that
the resolution of these issues will have on the Company's fi-
nancial condition or results of operations. The Company and
cotenant companies have negotiated and reached resolution
on Unit 2 Settlement cap, contractor litigation, operating pru-
dence issues and future operating and maintenance expense
levels (See Note 10. "Unit2 Ratemaking and Cost Settlement" ).

The Company has been studying the advantages and disad-
vantages of continuing the operation of Unit 1. Pursuant to the
1989 Agreement, the Company willfurther develop the study in
good faith consultation with the parties to the 1989 Agreement
and submit it to the PSC no later that February 28, 1990. The
Company also willsubmit to the PSC and provide to the parties
to the 1989 Agreement, on or before June 1, ]990, a study of
the advantages and disadvantages of a separation, sale or
other action with respect to the Company's gas business, and
further develop that analysis in cooperation with the PSC Staff.
The Company is unable to predict the results of these studies,
what action may be initiated based upon such results or the
impact that such results will have on the Company's financial
condition or results of operations.

Facility

Expiration Purchased
date of capacity

contract inkw.

Estimated
annual

capacitycost

Niagara-
hydroetectric project ..

St. Lawrence-
hydroelectric project ..

Blenheim-Gilboa-
pumped storage
generating station.....

FitzPatrick-
nuclear plant .........

2007 915,000 $15,365,000

2007 104,000 1,248,000

2002 395„000(a) 8,523,000

year-to- 77,000(b) 6,231,000
ear basis

1,491,000 $31,367,000

(a) 270,000 kw beginning May 1990.
(b) 19,000 kw for summer of 1990; 40,000 kw for winter of 1990-91.

NOTE 12. Commitments and Contingencies
Construction Program:The Company is committed to an ongo-
ing construction program to assure reliable delivery of its elec-
tric and gas services. The Company presently estimates that
the construction program for the years 1990 through 1994 will
require approximately $ 1.85 billion, excluding AFC, nuclear
fuel and certain overheads capitalized. For the years 1990
through 1994, the estimates are $364 million, $413 million,
$388 million, $354 million and $332 million, respectively.

.Long-term Contracts for the Purchase of Electric Power: At
January 1, 19SO, the Company had long-term contracts to
purchase electric power from the following generating
facilities owned by the New York Power Authority (NYPA):
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The purchase capacities shown above are based on the con-
tracts currently in effect. The estimated annual capacity costs
are subject to price escalation and are exclusive of applicable
energy charges. Total cost of purchases under these contracts
amounted to $52.8 million, $46.3 million and $57.2 million for
the years 1989, 1988 and 1987, respectively.

Under the requirements of the Federal Public Utility Reg-
ulatory Policies Act, the Company is required to purchase
power generated by Qualifying Facilities, as defined therein.
Approximately $131 million was paid to Qualifying Facilities in
1989 for 2,033,000,000 kwh of energy and associated capacity.
Through December 31, 1989, the Company has entered into
agreements with numerous current and prospective indepen-
dent producers, including Qualifying Facilities, which may
substantially increase its future purchase power commitments.
The amount of the commitment and the available capacity are
dependent upon the ultimate completion of these projects.
Generally, the Company must only pay for'energy delivered,

Lease Commitments: The Company leases certain property
and equipment which meet the accounting criteria for capitali-
zation. Such leases, having a net book value of $59.3 million
and $65.9 million at December 31, 1989 and 1988, respectively,
are included in the a'ccompanying Consolidated Balance
Sheets. Since current rate-making practice treats all leases as
operating leases, the capitalization of these leases has no im-
pact on the Company's Consolidated Statements of Income.
The Company recognizes as a charge against income an
amount equal to the rental expense allowed for rate purposes.
The Company's future minimum rental commitments under
these capital leases and non-cancellable operating leases
aggregate approximately $622 million, a substantial portion of
which relates to a 41-year lease of a transmission line facility.
Annual future minimum rental commitments for the period
1990-1994 range between $23 million and $33 million.

Sale of Customer Receivables: The Company has an agree-
menf whereby it can sell an undivided interest in a designated
pool of customer receivables including accrued unbilled elec-
tric reverlues up to a maximum of $200 million. At December
31, 1989, $ 171 million of receivables were sold under this
agreement. An additional $29 millionwas so/d in January1990.
The undivided interest in, the designated pool'of receivables
was sold with limited recourse. For receivables sold, the Com-
pany has retained collection and administrative respon-
sibilities as agent for the purchaser.

Litigation: In May 1988, a stockholders'erivative suit was
commenced in the United States District Court, Northern Dis-
trict of New York, against certain members of the Board of
Directors and several officers of the Company. The complaint
purported to state claims on behalf of the Company for alleged
violations of the federal securities laws and state law in con-
nection with Unit 2. The amount of damage claimed was not
specified.

Following initial dismissal of the complaint, the plaintiffs
filed a second amended complaint in January 1989, again pur-
porting to state claims on behalf of the Company for alleged
violations of the fecferal securities laws and for alleged negli-
gence, mismanagement, waste and breaches of fiduciary duty,
all in connection with Unit 2. The defendants again made mo-
tions to dismiss the action.

On May 19 and 25, 1989, the Court rendered decisions grant-
Ing the defendants'otions and dismissed all counts of the
complaint. The Company is unable to predict whether the
plaintiffs will commence an action in state court covering the
claims governed by state Iaw.

's permitted by law and by its by-laws, the Company has
indemnified its officers and directors for loss and expense,
including judgments or settlements, incurred in connection
with the defense of such actions, and haadirectors and officers
liability insurance to cover all or part of its indemnification
obligations.

Anti-TrustAction.'n December 1987, Long Lake Energy Corpo-
ration (Long Lake) filed an action in the United States District
Court for the Southern District of New York, subsequently
amended in May 1988, asserting claims under Section 2 of the
Sherman Act and New York's Donnelly Act. The complaint al-
leges that the Company interfered with Long Lake's attempts
to license hydroelectric projects with the FERC. In July 1988,
the Company moved for summary judgment which was sub-
sequently denied by the Court without prejudice to its renewal
at the close of the discovery process. The Company has denied
the substantive allegations of the complaint and is contemplat-
ing renewal of its motion for summary judgment when discov-
ery is concluded. By letter dated November 16, 1989, Long
Lake's counsel claimed damages of $214,000,000 before tre-
bling. The complaint has not been amended to reflect this
amount. Long Lake's damage study is based, among other
things, on the assumption that but for the conduct alleged,
Long Lake would have been awarded a license by FERC for
numerous hydroelectric sites, many of which both Long Lake

-and the Company have competing license applications cur-
rently pending before FERC. The Company believes that it has
meritorious defenses to Long Lake's claims.

The Company is unable to predict the outcome of this action
or the impact, if any, on the Company's financial position or
results of operations.

Leveraged Preferred Stock Tax Reimbursement: The Company
issued several series of leveraged preferred stock which con-
tain tax reimbursement provisions that may apply if certain
benefits contemplated by the arrangements are lost or become
unavailable to the purchasers of the issues. In July 1989, the
Company was notified that the arrangements were being chaI-
lenged by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS), pursuant to an
audit of the purchasers'rusts for the year 1985. The Company
may be liable to the purchasers for reimbursement if the IRS is
successful ln any manner that results in a partial or complete
loss of certain tax benefits. On January 9 and 11, 1990, the
Company received indemnity Schedules from the purchasers
of the Company's leveraged preferred stock series being chal-
lenged by the IRS. The Indemnity Schedules indicate a total
liability of approximately $35 million for dividends paid
through,1989 as calculated by the Equity Participants. The
Company has Issued a letter to the Equity Participants contest-
ing the Indemnity Schedules and its potential liability to the
purchasers. The Company is unable to predict whether the IRS
will be successful in its challenge or the extent of the Com-
pany's financial exposure if such challenge is successful.
However, the Company believes any liability arising from res-
olution of these issues is expected to be recovered in the
ratesetting process.

Environmental issues: The Company is currently conducting a
program to investigate and restore, as necessary to meet en-
vironmental standards, certain properties associated with a
former gas manufacturing process and other properties which
the Company has learned may be contaminated with industrial
waste as well as investigating potential industrial waste sites to
which it may be determined the Company contributed..The
Company has been advised that various Federal, state or local
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agencies currently believe that'certain properties warrant in-
vestigation. The Company is associated with approximately 65
identified sites, of which 35 are Company-owned. Of the 35
Company-owned sites, 24 are coal gasification sites and 11 are
industrial waste sites, The 30 remaining sites with which the
Company is associated are generally alleged to be industrial
waste sites. The Company can provide no assurance that addi-
tional sites with which it is or may be associated with will not
be identified in the future as requiring investigation or remedi-
ation.

The Company's investigations at each of the Company-
owned sites are designed to (1) determine if environmental
confamination problems exist, (2) determine the extent, rate of
movement and concentration of pollutants, and (3) if neces-
sary, determine the appropriate remedial actions required for
site restoration. Site investigations may also include, where
appropriate, identification of other parties that the Company
believes should bear some, if not all, of tIIe cost of remediation.
After site investigations have been completed, the Company
will be able to determine the remedial actions necessary and
the attendant costs for'estoration. The Company has not yet
undertaken any remedial actions at any identified sites, nor
have responsible regulatory agencies approved any of the
Company's submitted remediation plans. Therefore, the ulti-
mate cost of remedial actions may substantially change as in-,
vestigation and remediation progresses.

The Company has completed various phases of studies on
six Company owned sites and has submitted those studies to
the appropriate regulatory agency. Based upon the findings of
those studieS and preliminary internal assessments of other
sites the Company believes may require some level of remedia-

tion, total expenditures for Company owned sites are esti-
mated to approximate $ 104 million through 1997. With respect
to sites with which the Company is associated, total costs to
investigate and remediate these sites are estimated to be ap-
proximately $ 103 million through 1997, of which the Com-
pany's share may approximate $13 million. Actual Company
expenditures for these sites is dependent upon the total cost of
investigation and remediation, as well as the determination of
the Company's share of responsibility for such costs, The
Company believes that costs incurred in the investigation and
restoration process are recoverable in the ratesetting process.

Tax Assessments: The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) has
completed examinations of the Company's Federal income tax
returns for 1981 through 1984. The IRS has proposed various
adjustments to the Company's Federal income tax liability for
these years which could increase Federal income tax expense
by approximately $10.0 million before assessment of penalties
and interest. The Company is vigorously'ontesting the pro-
posed adjustments, and believes that the ultimate resolution
thereof willnot have a material effect on the Company's finan-
cial position or results of operations. The Company also be-
lieves that assessments, if any, are generally recoverable in
rates.

The Company is also at various stages of examination by the
State of New York for sales tax and other state taxes. The
Company believes that the resolution of these examinations
will not have a material impact on the Company's financial
condition or results of operations, and that any assessments
ultimately sustained will be recoverable by the Company
through the ratesetting process.

Net Earnings (loss) per
income toss) common share

NOTE 13. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
Operating revenues, operating income, net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per common share by quarters for 1989, 1988 and

1987 are shown in the following table. The Company, in its opinion, has included ail adjustments necessary for a fair presentation
of the results of operations for the quarters. Due to the seasonal nature of the utility business, the annual amounts are not
generated evenly by quarter during the year.

In thousands oldollars
Quarter Operating Operating
ended revenues income

December 31, 1989
1988
1987

September 30, 1989
1988
1987

June 30, 1989
1988
1987

March 31, 1989
1988
1987

$734,038
678,858
653,906

$612,971
608,393
556,845

$710,582
702,678
624,628

$848,452
810,524
788,051

$ 88,139
65,918

114,509

$1011546
113,496
98,958

$ 87,908
126,718
102,810

$134,366
170,221
169,121

$ 9,068
(3,808)
32,649

$ 36,322
52,297
44,829

$ 34,147
46,823
48,711

$ 71,246
113,502
618,10

$ (.01)
(12)
.3

$ .19
.31
.25

$ .17
.27
.29

$ A4
.77

4.9

Year end adjustments to annual estimates of taxes and expense accruais made in the fourth quarter of 1988 had the effect of
decreasing net income for the quarter by approximately $14 million or $ .11 per common share. In addition, in the fourth quarter
of 1989, 1988 and 1987 the Company accrued $ 14.5 million ($ .08 per common share), $7.5 million ($ ;04 per common share) and
$13.0 million ($ .08 per common share), respectively, relating to its investment in NM Uranium, Inc., resulting in a decrease in net
income for each quarter (See Note 3).

In the first quarter of 1987, the Company recorded a net loss associated with the Unit 2 disallowance of $755 million relating to
its adoption of SFAS No. 90. The proforma amounts, to reflect the retroactive application for SFAS No. 90 for the first quarter of
1987 fot'Net loss and Loss per common share, are $3.1 million and $ .13, respectively. An additional $78 millionwas written off in
tt)e fourth quarter of 1987 based upon a revision of the Unit 2 cost estimate. See Note 10.
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NOTE 14. Subsequent Events (Unaudited)
On February 13, 1990, the Company received a report dis-

cussing the results of an inspection conducted at Units 1 and 2
by NRC site resident inspectors in September and October
1989. The report identified a number of potential deficiencies
at Unit 1, including inadequate management oversight of sys-
tem "walkdowns". Based upon the inspectors'oncern of in-
adequate management oversight, coupled with other system,
specific concerns, an enforcement conference has been re-

" quested by the NRC Region I Administrator to further discuss
these findings and assess their safety significance. The Com-
pany is correcting the deficiencies identified in the report. The
Company is unable to predict what actions may be taken by the

NRC as a result of the enforcement conference„but does not
believe that the outcome will have an effect on the restart of
Unit 1.

The Company was also notified by the NRC Region I Admin-
istrator that as a result of this same inspection a Notice of
Violation has been issued with respect to Unit 2. The Notice of
Violation, which has been categorized as Severity Level IV and
thus may result in a fine, was precipitated by the resident in-
spectors'onclusion that Unit 2 personnel had violated post-
maintenance testing requirements of the unit cooler for a con-
trol room. The Company must provide a response to the NRC
within thirty days of receipt of the report.

Market Price ofCommon Stock and Related Stockholder Matters

1989

1st Quarter
2nd

Quarter'rd

Quarter
4th Quarter

1988
1st Quarter
2nd Quarter
3rd Quarter
4th Quarter

Dividend paid Price range
er share Hl h Low

$ .30 $ 13/4 $ 11'/z
~ 30 12'/s 1IR4

14z/s 11'/s
14z/4 13s/s

$ .60

$ ,30 $14 $ 12
,30 15'/z 12s/s

.30 15z/s 12'/s

.30 14t/4 12t/z

$1.20

On August 31. 1989, the Board of Di-
rectors, after considering the uncertain-
ties facing the Company, including the
level and timing of future rate relief, the
restart of Unit 1 and the risks associated

The Company's common stock and cer-
tain of its preferred series are listed on
the New York Stock Exchange. The
common stock is also traded on the
Boston, Cincinnati, Midwest, Pacific
and Philadelphia stock exchanges.
Common stock options are traded on
the American Stock Exchange. The
ticker symbol is "NMK'".

, Preferred dividends were paid on
March 31, June 30, September 30 and
December 31. Common stock dividends
were paid on March 31 and June 30,
1989 and subsequently suspended due
to the uncertainties discussed below.
The Company presently estimates that
none of the 1989 common or preferred
stock dividends will constitute a return
of capital and therefore all of such div-
idends are subject to Federal income
tax as ordinary income.

with a number of outstanding regula-
tory proceedings, determined to omit
the third quarter common stock div-
idend. No fourth quarter common stock
dividend was paid. Resumption of pay-
ment of the common stock dividend will
depend on the resolution of issues af-
fecting the long-range financial condi-
tion of the Company, including the re-
turn to service of Unit 1 and the effect, if
any, of such resumption of common
stock dividends on the 1989 Agreement,
as discussed in Note 11 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
Pursuant to the 1989 Agreement, if the
Company resumes payment of common
stock dividends prior to Unit 1 being
fully returned to service (and achieving
an average 75% capacity factor for a
period of thirty consecutive days) any
other party to the 1989 Agreement may
withdraw therefrom and recommence
litigation of the rate case and the reg-
ulatory proceedings covered by the
1989 Agreement. The Company can
provide no assurance that when Unit 1

has returned to service its Board of Di-
rectors will thereupon determine to re-
sume common stock dividend pay-
ments or as to the level at which they
might be resumed.

The holders of common stock are en-
titled to one vote per share but may not
cumulate their votes for the election of
Directors. Whenever dividends on Pre-
ferred Stock are in default in an amount
equivalent to four full quarterly div-
idends and thereafter until all dividends
thereon are paid or declared 'and set
aside for payment, the holders of such
stock can elect a majority of the Board
of Directors. Whenever dividends on
any Preference Stock are in default in
an amount equivalent to six full quar-

terly dividends and thereafter until all
dividends thereon are paid or declared
and set apart for payment, the holders
of such stock can elect two members to
the Board of Directors. No dividends on
Preferred Stock are now in arrears and
no Preference Stock is now outstand-
ing, although the Company plans fo
issue $ 100 million of Preference Stock
during 1990.

Upon any dissolution, liquidation or
winding up of the Company's business,
the holders of Common Stock are enti-
tled to receive a pro rata share of all of
the Company's assets 'remaining and

'vailable for distribution after the full
amounts to which holders of Preferred
and Preference Stock are entitled have
been satisfied.

The indenture securing the Com-
pany's mortgage debt provides that
surplus shall be reserved and held un-
available for the payment of dividends
on Common Stock to the extent that
expenditures for maintenance and re-
pairs plus provisions for depreciatior}
do not exceed 2.25% of depreciable
property as defined therein. Such provi-
sions have never restricted the Com-
pany's surplus.

At year'nd, about 152,000 stockhold-
ers owned common shares of Niagara
Mohawk and about 6,500 held preferred
stock.

Size of holding Total Total shares
Shares stockholders held

1 to 99 53,089 1,791,505
100 to 999 88,426 24,783,311

1,000 or more 10,175 109,524,838

151,690 136.099,654
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Reyort ofM:magement

The consolidated financial statements of Niagara Mohawk
Power Corporation and its subsidiaries were prepared by
and are the responsibility ot management. Financial infor-
rnation contained elsewhere in this Annual Report is consis-
tent with that in the financial statements.

To meet its responsibilities with respect to financial in-
formation, management maintains and enforces a system of
„internal accounting controls, which is designed to provide
reasonable assurance, on a cost etfective basis, as to the
integrity, objectivity and reliability of the financial records
and protection of assets. This system includes communica-
tion through written policies and procedures, an organiza-
tional structure that provides for appropriate division of re-
sponsibility and the training ot personnel. This system is
also tested by a comprehensive internal audit program. In
addition, the Company has a Code of Conduct which re-
quires all employees to maintain the highest level ot ethical
standards and requires key management employees to for-
mally aftirm their compliance with the Code.

The financial statements have been examined by Price

Waterhouse, the Company's independent accountants, in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. As
part of their examination, they made a study and evaluation
ot the Company's system ot internal accounting control.
The purpose of such study was to establish a basis for re-
liance thereon in determining the nature. timing and extent
of other auditing procedures that were necessary for ex-
pressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements
are presented fairly in all material respects. Their examina-
tion resulted in the expression of their opinion which fol-
lows this report. The independent accountants'xamination
does not limit in any way management's responsibility for
the fair presentation ot the financial statements and all other
intormation, whether audited or unaudited, in this Annual
Report.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, consisting
of four directors who are not employ'ees, meets regularly
with management, internal auditors and Price Waterhouse
to review and discuss internal accounting controls, audit
examinations and financial reporting matters. Price
Waterhouse and the Company's internal auditors have tree
access to meet individuallywith the Audit Committee at any
time, without management present.

Report of Independent Accountants

Price &ate@house

To the Stockholders and
Board of Directors of
Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets and the related consolidated statements of income
and retained earnings and of cash flows present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position ot Niagara Mohawk
Power Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31 ~

1989 and 1988, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 1989, in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management; our respon-
sibility is to express an opinion on these financial state-
ments based on our audits. We conducted our audits of
these statements in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards which require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free ot mater(ai misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence support-
ing the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation, We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above.

As described in Note 10, the Company adopted ln 1987
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 90, "Reg-
ulate;d Enterprises-Accounting for Abandonments and
Disallowances of Plant Costs." The adoption of this State-

ment resUlted in the disallowed portion ot the Company's
investment in the Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station No. 2
(Unit 2) being recognized as a loss in the 1987 financial
statements.

As a result ot continuing uncertainties with respect to Unit
2 discussed in Note 10, management is unable to predict
whether further regulatory actions by the New York State
Public Service Commission (PSC) with respect to its in-
vestment in the Unit will have, in the aggregate, a material
eftect on its financial position or results of operations. Ac-
cordingly, no provision for any additional loss that may re-
sult upon resolution of these uncertainties has been made
in the accompanying tinancial statements.

As discussed in Note 10, in 1988 the PSC instituted a pro-
ceeding, based upon its authority to order the retund of any
imprudently incurred costs, to investigate Nine'Mile Point
Nuclear Station Unit No, 1 (Unit 1) outage. Management is
unable to predict whether further regulatory actions by the
PSC related to the Unit 1 outage will have a material effect
on its financial position or results of operations. Accord-
ingly', no provision for loss that may result upon resolution
of this uncertainty has been made in the accompanying
1989 and 1988 financial statements.

As discussed in Note 12, the Company is a defendant in a
lawsuit alleging violations of certain tederal and state anti-
trust statutes. Management is unable to predict whether the
outcome of this action will have a material effect on its fi-
nancial position or results of operations. Accordingly, no
provision for any liabilitythat may result upon resolution ot
this uncertainty has been made in the accompanying 1989
financial statements.

Syracuse, New York
January 25, 1990



NIAGARA MOHAWK POWER CORPORATION .AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Electric and Gas Statistics
ELECTRIC CAPABILITY

Thousands ofkilowatts
AtSanuary 1. 1990 /o 1989 1988

Thermal:
Coeifuel

Huntley, Niagara River .......„... 715 9 715 ?15
Dunkirk. Lake Erie ................ 585

'
560 560

Tolelcoalluel.............'...... 1,300 17 1.275 1.275

ELECTRIC STATISTICS
,1989

Electric sales(Millions ofkw-hrs.)
Residential ............,... 10,357
Commercial .............,. 11,432
industrial ....,.......„,... 12,184
Municipal service .......... „228
Other elecfric systems ...... 1,195

35,396

1988

10,099
11 ~ 182
11,745

237
1,732

34,995

1987

9,655
10,718
't 0,922

235
4,154

35,684
Residual oilfuel

Albany, Hudson River'* ...,......., 400
Oswego, Lake Ontario"'...,....,. 1,654
Roseton, Hudson River .......,.... 300

Middle distillate oilfuel
8 Combustion turbine units ........ 230

5 400 400
22 1,571 1,572

4 300 300

3 237 237
Tolelollfuel ..............,..... '2,584 34 2,508 2.S09

Nuclear fuel
Nine MiloPoint, Lake Ontario(1).... 1,050 14 1,054 610
Purchased-firm contract

Power Authority-
FitzPatrick. Lake Ontario ....,... 77 1 53 59
Total nuclear fuel ............... 1,127 15 1.107 669

lndependentl owned sources . ~..... 171 2 121 97
Total thermal sources............... 5,182 68 5.011 4,550

805,523
827,918
458.332

41,231
60.214

150,514

739,034
783,103
435,518

40,603
118,021
53,912

$2,418,662, $ 2,343,732 $ 2.170,191

Electric customers(Average)
Residential ................
Industrial............,.....

1,345,033
143,232

2,334
3,163

1,324,367
140,237

2.322
3.182

1,307,946
138,193

2,374
3.400

Electric revenues(?h'ousands ol dollars)
Residential,........,....., $ 842,523 $
Commercial ...,...,....... 874,187
Industrial,..........,...... 486,108
Municipal service ....,. „., 42,294
Other electric systems...... 58,056
Miscellaneous .........,... 115,494

Hydro:
Owned and leased hydro stations (?4) .
Purchased-firm contracts;

Power Authority-
Niagara River ...,........ „„.....
St. Lawrence River .....,..... „.
Blenheim-Gilboa

Pumped Storage Plant ...,....,
Other .

680 9 695 695

395 5
298 4

295 2?0
294 285

915 12 1,077 1,076
104 2

Residential(Average)
Annual kw.hr. use

percustomer ..„.....,..
Cost Io customer per kw Itr, .
Artnual revenue

per customer ............

1,493>762

7>700
8.1 4t>

$ 626.40

1,470,108

7,626
?.98tt

$ 608.23

1,451,913

7,382
?,65tf

$565.03

Total hydro sources................. 2,392 32 2.361 2,326
Totalcapabllity',...,..........,.... 7,574 100 7,372 6,876

1989 1988 1987

, Electric peak load durln ear.....,. 6,376 6.220 5,780

'Availablo capability can be increased during heavy load periods by
purchases from neighboring interconnected systems. Hydro station
capability is based on average December stream-flow conditions.

-Has capability to burn natura! gas (as well as oii) as a fust,
'*'Oswego Unit 3 burns natural gas only,

(1) Nine Mile Point Unit No. 1 (representing 610,000 KW) has been
out of service since December 1987. See Note 10.

GAS STATISTICS
1989

Gas sales(Thousandsoldekatherms) ~

Residential .... ~......~.... 52,893
Commercial ........... "..... 23,152
Industrial .........,........ 2,612
Other gas systems .......... 2,020

Total sales.....,...., .. 80,677
Transportation of

customer-owned gas ..... 33,769

1988

51,065
23,951

4,274
2.1 58

81,448

27,244

198?

48,054
23,520
?,242
2,504

81,320

21,862

ELECTRICITYGENERATED
AND PURCHASED Millionsolkw-hrs.

1989, /o f988 'Yo 1987

Thermal:
Generated

Coal ".....~.... > ..,.

Nuclear ..............
Natural gas ....,....,.

Purchesed-
Nuclear from
Power Authority.......
Independently owned

sources i ~ ~ a ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~

9,013 24 1,894 21 7,'1 85 18
6,470 17 7,444 19 4,256
1,762 5 1>460 4 4.753 12
2,456 6 1,070 3 1,785 4

387 1 306 1 700 2

830 2 612 1 359 1

Tolallhormel ...,... 20,918 55 18.786 49 19.038 48
Hydro:
Generated ..........., ..
Purchased from

Power Authority..... „
Independently owned

sources ............

3>675 10 3,171 8 3,396 8

6,721 17 7,014 18 7,378 19

1,203 3 978 3 1,017 3

Totalhydro ......... 11,599 30 11,163 29 11.791 30
Other purchased power-

varlous sources,..... 5,765 15 8.192 22 8.583 22
Total generated

andpurchased ....... 38,282 100 38,141 100 39,412 100

Gas revenues(Thousands ofdollars)
Residential ................ $317,532
Commercial ......, ..'...... 125,912
Industrial ......,........... 12,309
Other gas systems..., ... 9,272
Transportation of

customer-owned gas .....
Miscellaneous .............

19,831
2,525

$ 289,026
119.929

19,008
9,363

13,841
5,554

$280,092
121,145
29,?33

8,802

11,551
1,916

$487,381 $456,721 $ 453,239

Gas customers(Average)
Residential .........„.....
Commercial .....,„........
Industrial... ~ ..............
Transportation .........., ..

424,494
35>925

280
2

516

417,360
35,017

323
2

403

411,566
33,974

395
2

184

461>217 453,105 446,121

Residential(Average):
Annual dekatherm use

pef customer > ~ s ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~

Cost to customer
perdekatherm ...........

Annual revenue
percustomer ............

Maximum day gas
sendout (dekafherms) .. „

124.6 122,4

$ 6.00 $ 5.66

$748.02 $ 692,51

802,909 818,128

116.8

$ 5.83

$ 680.55,

758,914

Total gas delivered,.... 114,446 108,692 103,182
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iCOryOrate EnfOrmatiOXX
Annual Meeting
The annual meeting ofshareholders willbe held at the
Evcrson Museum ofArt, 401 Harrison Street, Syracuse, N.Y.
13202 at 10:30 a.m. Tuesday, May I, 1990, A not'ice of the
mccting, proxy statement and form ofproxy willbe sent to
holders ofcommon stock in carly April.

Shareholder Inquiries
Questions regarding ownership ofNiagara Mohawk stock
or the status ofan account may be directed to the
Company's Shareholder Services department,

(315) 428-6750 (Syracuse)
1-800-962.3236 (New Yorkstate)
1-800-448-5450 (elsewhere in continental U.S.)

SEC Form 10-K Report
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wit)loutcharge after March 31, 1990 by writing the
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Syracuse, liI.Y.13202.
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Niagara Mohawk Power, Corporation
300 Eric Boulevard West, Syracuse, N.Y. 13202

Bonds: Marine Midland Bank, N.A.
140 Broadway, New York, N.Y. 10015
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Preferred and Common Stocks:

" First Chicago Trust Company ofNew York
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(Effective 6/I/89)
Bonds: Marine Midland Bank, N.A.
140 Broadway, New York, N.Y. 10015
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Bonds: Traded on the New YorkStock Exchange.

The information in this report is not given ln connection with the sale of, or offer to buy, any security. Pffnted in U.S.A.
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